
Committee Agenda   

 

1 

 

 
Area Planning Subcommittee South 
Wednesday, 12th June, 2013 
 
You are invited to attend the next meeting of Area Planning Subcommittee South, which 
will be held at:  
 
Roding Valley High School, Brook Road, Loughton, Essex IG10 3JA 
on Wednesday, 12th June, 2013 
at 7.30 pm . 
 Glen Chipp 

Chief Executive 
 

Democratic Services 
Officer 

Gary Woodhall   (The Office of the Chief Executive) 
Tel: 01992 564470   Email: 
democraticservices@eppingforestdc.gov.uk 

 
Members: 
 
Councillors J Hart (Chairman), N Wright (Vice-Chairman), K Angold-Stephens, G Chambers, 
K Chana, Mrs T Cochrane, R Cohen, C Finn, L Girling, Ms J Hart, J Knapman, L Leonard, 
A Lion, H Mann, J Markham, G Mohindra, Mrs C Pond, B Sandler, Mrs T Thomas, H Ulkun, 
Mrs L Wagland, Ms S Watson and D Wixley 
 
 
 
 

A BRIEFING FOR THE CHAIRMAN, VICE-CHAIRMAN AND 
APPOINTED SPOKESPERSONS WILL BE HELD AT 6.30 P.M. IN 
COMMITTEE ROOM 1 ON THE DAY OF THE SUB-COMMITTEE. 

 
 

WEBCASTING NOTICE 
 
Please note: this meeting may be filmed for live or subsequent broadcast via the 
Council's internet site - at the start of the meeting the Chairman will confirm if all or 
part of the meeting is being filmed.  
 
You should be aware that the Council is a Data Controller under the Data Protection 
Act. Data collected during this webcast will be retained in accordance with the 
Council’s published policy and copies made available to those that request it. 
 
Therefore by entering the Chamber and using the lower public seating area, you are 
consenting to being filmed and to the possible use of those images and sound 
recordings for web casting and/or training purposes. If members of the public do not 
wish to have their image captured they should sit in the upper council chamber 
public gallery area 



Area Planning Subcommittee South Wednesday, 12 June 2013 
 

2 

 
If you have any queries regarding this, please contact the Senior Democratic 
Services Officer on 01992 564249. 
 
 

 1. WEBCASTING INTRODUCTION   
 

  1. This meeting is to be webcast;  
 
2. Members are reminded of the need to activate their microphones before 
speaking; and  
 
3. the Chairman will read the following announcement: 
 
“I would like to remind everyone present that this meeting will be filmed live for 
subsequent uploading to the Internet and will be capable of repeated viewing. 
 
If you are seated in the public seating area it is possible that the recording cameras 
will capture your image and this will result in the possibility that your image will 
become part of the broadcast although Officers will try and avoid this. 
 
This may infringe your human and data protection rights and if you have any concerns 
about this you should speak to the Webcasting Officer.” 
 

 2. ADVICE TO PUBLIC AND SPEAKERS AT COUNCIL PLANNING 
SUBCOMMITTEES  (Pages 5 - 10) 

 
  General advice to people attending the meeting is attached together with a plan 

showing the location of the meeting. 
 

 3. MINUTES  (Pages 11 - 30) 
 

  To confirm the minutes of the last meeting of the Sub-Committee held on 15 May 
2013. 
 

 4. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   
 



Area Planning Subcommittee South Wednesday, 12 June 2013 
 

3 

 5. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   
 

  (Assistant to the Chief Executive) To declare interests in any item on this agenda. 
 

 6. ANY OTHER BUSINESS   
 

  Section 100B(4)(b) of the Local Government Act 1972, together with paragraphs 6 and 
25 of the Council Procedure Rules contained in the Constitution requires that the 
permission of the Chairman be obtained, after prior notice to the Chief Executive, 
before urgent business not specified in the agenda (including a supplementary agenda 
of which the statutory period of notice has been given) may be transacted. 
 
In accordance with Operational Standing Order 6 (non-executive bodies), any item 
raised by a non-member shall require the support of a member of the Committee 
concerned and the Chairman of that Committee.  Two weeks' notice of non-urgent 
items is required. 
 

 7. DEVELOPMENT CONTROL  (Pages 31 - 70) 
 

  (Director of Planning and Economic Development)  To consider planning applications 
as set out in the attached schedule 
 
Background Papers:  (i)  Applications for determination – applications listed on the 
schedule, letters of representation received regarding the applications which are 
summarised on the schedule.  (ii)  Enforcement of Planning Control – the reports of 
officers inspecting the properties listed on the schedule in respect of which 
consideration is to be given to the enforcement of planning control. 
 

 8. PLANNING PROTOCOL - SITE VISITS  (Pages 71 - 76) 
 

  To consider the attached report.  
 
 
 

 9. PROBITY IN PLANNING - APPEAL DECISIONS, OCTOBER 2012 TO MARCH 2013  
(Pages 77 - 126) 

 
  (Director of Planning and Economic Development) To consider the attached report.  

 
 10. DELEGATED DECISIONS   

 
  (Director of Planning and Economic Development) Schedules of planning applications 

determined by the Head of Planning and Economic Development under delegated 
powers since the last meeting of a Plans Subcommittee may be inspected in the 
Members Room or at the Planning and Economic Development Information Desk at 
the Civic Offices, Epping. 
 

 11. EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS   
 

  Exclusion: To consider whether, under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government 
Act 1972, the public and press should be excluded from the meeting for the items of 
business set out below on grounds that they will involve the likely disclosure of exempt 
information as defined in the following paragraph(s) of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the 
Act (as amended) or are confidential under Section 100(A)(2): 
 



Area Planning Subcommittee South Wednesday, 12 June 2013 
 

4 

Agenda Item No Subject Exempt Information 
Paragraph Number 

Nil Nil Nil 
 
The Local Government (Access to Information) (Variation) Order 2006, which came 
into effect on 1 March 2006, requires the Council to consider whether maintaining the 
exemption listed above outweighs the potential public interest in disclosing the 
information. Any member who considers that this test should be applied to any 
currently exempted matter on this agenda should contact the proper officer at least 24 
hours prior to the meeting. 
 
Confidential Items Commencement: Paragraph 9 of the Council Procedure Rules 
contained in the Constitution require: 
 
(1) All business of the Council requiring to be transacted in the presence of the 

press and public to be completed by 10.00 p.m. at the latest. 
 
(2) At the time appointed under (1) above, the Chairman shall permit the 

completion of debate on any item still under consideration, and at his or her 
discretion, any other remaining business whereupon the Council shall proceed 
to exclude the public and press. 

 
(3) Any public business remaining to be dealt with shall be deferred until after the 

completion of the private part of the meeting, including items submitted for 
report rather than decision. 

 
Background Papers:  Paragraph 8 of the Access to Information Procedure Rules of 
the Constitution define background papers as being documents relating to the subject 
matter of the report which in the Proper Officer's opinion: 
 
(a) disclose any facts or matters on which the report or an important part of the 

report is based;  and 
 
(b) have been relied on to a material extent in preparing the report and does not 

include published works or those which disclose exempt or confidential 
information (as defined in Rule 10) and in respect of executive reports, the 
advice of any political advisor. 

 
Inspection of background papers may be arranged by contacting the officer 
responsible for the item. 
 

 
 



Advice to Public and Speakers at Council Planning Subcommittees 
 
Are the meetings open to the public? 
 
Yes all our meetings are open for you to attend. Only in special circumstances are 
the public excluded. 
 
When and where is the meeting? 
 
Details of the location, date and time of the meeting are shown at the top of the front 
page of the agenda along with the details of the contact officer and members of the 
Subcommittee.  
 
Can I speak? 
 
If you wish to speak you must register with Democratic Services by 4.00 p.m. on 
the day before the meeting. Ring the number shown on the top of the front page of 
the agenda. Speaking to a Planning Officer will not register you to speak, you must 
register with Democratic Service. Speakers are not permitted on Planning 
Enforcement or legal issues. 
 
Who can speak? 
 
Three classes of speakers are allowed: One objector (maybe on behalf of a group), 
the local Parish or Town Council and the Applicant or his/her agent.  
 
Sometimes members of the Council who have a prejudicial interest and would 
normally withdraw from the meeting might opt to exercise their right to address the 
meeting on an item and then withdraw.  
 
Such members are required to speak from the public seating area and address the 
Sub-Committee before leaving. 
 
What can I say? 
 
You will be allowed to have your say about the application but you must bear in mind 
that you are limited to three minutes. At the discretion of the Chairman, speakers 
may clarify matters relating to their presentation and answer questions from Sub-
Committee members.  
 
If you are not present by the time your item is considered, the Subcommittee will 
determine the application in your absence. 
 
Can I give the Councillors more information about my application or my 
objection? 
 
Yes you can but it must not be presented at the meeting. If you wish to send 
further information to Councillors, their contact details can be obtained through 
Democratic Services or our website www.eppingforestdc.gov.uk. Any information 
sent to Councillors should be copied to the Planning Officer dealing with your 
application. 
 

Agenda Item 2

Page 5



How are the applications considered? 
 
The Subcommittee will consider applications in the agenda order. On each case they 
will listen to an outline of the application by the Planning Officer. They will then hear 
any speakers’ presentations.  
 
The order of speaking will be (1) Objector, (2) Parish/Town Council, then (3) 
Applicant or his/her agent. The Subcommittee will then debate the application and 
vote on either the recommendations of officers in the agenda or a proposal made by 
the Subcommittee. Should the Subcommittee propose to follow a course of action 
different to officer recommendation, they are required to give their reasons for doing 
so. 
 
The Subcommittee cannot grant any application, which is contrary to Local or 
Structure Plan Policy. In this case the application would stand referred to the next 
meeting of the District Development Control Committee. 
 
Further Information? 
 
Can be obtained through Democratic Services or our leaflet ‘Your Choice, Your 
Voice’ 
 

Page 6



Area Plans Subcommittee South – Location Plan

PDF created with pdfFactory Pro trial version www.software-partners.co.uk

Page 7



Page 8

This page is intentionally left blank



Area Planning Subcommittee South  2013-14 
Members of the Committee: 
 
 

  
 
 
 

  
 
 
 

  
 
 
 
 

  
 
 
 

Cllr James 
Hart 

Cllr Finn 

Cllr Angold-
Stephens 

Cllr 
Chambers 

Cllr Lion Cllr 
Markham 

Cllr 
Mohindra 

Cllr Pond 

Cllr Ulkun Cllr 
Wagland 

Cllr Watson 

Cllr Cohen Cllr Girling Cllr Jennie 
Hart 

Cllr 
Knapman 

Cllr Wright Cllr Chana Cllr 
Cochrane 

Cllr Leonard 

Cllr 
Thomas 

Cllr Wixley 

Cllr Mann Cllr 
Sandler 

Cllr Mann 

Page 9



Page 10

This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 

1 

EPPING FOREST DISTRICT COUNCIL 
COMMITTEE MINUTES 

 
Committee: Area Planning Subcommittee 

South 
Date: 15 May 2013  

    
Place: Roding Valley High School, Brook 

Road, Loughton, Essex IG10 3JA 
Time: 7.30 - 10.01 pm 

  
Members 
Present: 

J Hart (Chairman), Ms S Watson (Vice-Chairman), K Angold-Stephens, 
G Chambers, K Chana, Mrs T Cochrane, C Finn, L Girling, Ms J Hart, 
J Knapman, H Mann, G Mohindra, Mrs C Pond, B Sandler, H Ulkun and 
Mrs L Wagland 

  
Other 
Councillors: 

 
  

  
Apologies: R Cohen, L Leonard, A Lion, J Markham, Mrs T Thomas and D Wixley 
  
Officers 
Present: 

N Richardson (Assistant Director (Development Control)), C Neilan 
(Landscape Officer & Arboriculturist), M Jenkins (Democratic Services 
Assistant), J Leither (Democratic Services Assistant), A Hendry (Democratic 
Services Officer) and G J Woodhall (Democratic Services Officer) 
 

  
 

82. WEBCASTING INTRODUCTION  
 
The Chairman made a short address to remind all present that the meeting would be 
broadcast on the Internet, and that the Council had adopted a protocol for the 
webcasting of its meetings. 
 

83. MINUTES  
 

RESOLVED: 
 

That the minutes of the last meeting of the Sub-Committee held on 10 April 
2013 be agreed. 

 
84. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 
There were no declarations of interest made pursuant to the Member’s Code of 
Conduct. 
 

85. ANY OTHER BUSINESS  
 
There was no other business for consideration. 
 

86. DEVELOPMENT CONTROL  
 
The Sub-Committee considered a schedule of applications for planning permission. 
 
 RESOLVED: 

Agenda Item 3

Page 11



Area Planning Subcommittee South  15 May 2013 

2 

 
 That the planning applications numbered 1 – 17 be determined as set out in 

the attached schedule to these minutes. 
 

87. CONFIRMATION OF TREE PRESERVATION ORDER TPO/EPF/21/12 AT 
DOLPHIN COURT, HIGH ROAD, CHIGWELL  
 
The Sub-Committee received a report regarding Confirmation of Tree Preservation 
Order TPO/EPF/21/12 Dolphin Court, High Road, Chigwell. 
 
TPO/EPF/21/12 protected 7 trees, individually specified, on the northern and western 
boundaries of Dolphin Court with High Road and Hainault Road, Chigwell. The tree 
of concern to the objector was T1 Ash situated close to the boundary with 1 Hainault 
Road. 
 
The TPO was made at the request of some of the residents of Dolphin Court as a 
result of a disagreement about the felling of one of the trees in particular. Given the 
location, and in particular the visual importance of the particular trees, a selective 
order was made on those trees of most public value. 
 
Objection 
 
The objection was on the basis that: 
 
(1) Ash trees were not generally attractive trees and only warranted a TPO in 
special circumstances, which in this instance, did not exist. 
 
(2) The tree was a potential threat to foundations and the TPO may prevent 
proper pruning or crown reduction. This would increase worry and cause difficulty 
with insurance, as a pensioner and widow, this was a concern to the objector. 
 
(3) The unfettered growth of the tree would cause an increase in maintenance 
through leaves in the gutters and on the driveway, as well as unnecessary and 
undesirable shading and infringe the objector’s views. 
 
(4) Additionally the objector felt that TPOs had “got out of hand” in the district. 
She supported tree protection in principle but felt that TPOs should be made only 
where trees were of special importance which she felt here was not the case. She felt 
that the reason for the number of TPOs was that the relevant officers wished to have 
bigger departments and more responsibility, as a result they made no distinction 
between trees which were important to the environment and those which were not. 
 
The Principal Landscape Officer advised that he was unsure if the objector had been 
notified that this application was being put before this sub-committee. He suggested 
that this item should be deferred to a future sub-committee meeting to allow officers 
to check that the objector had been notified. 
 

RESOLVED: 
 

That Confirmation of Tree Preservation Order TPO/EPF/21/12 at Dolphin 
Court, High Road, Chigwell be deferred to a future meeting of the sub-
committee to allow officers time to check that the objector has been notified of 
the application being put before the sub-committee. 

 
88. DELEGATED DECISIONS  

 

Page 12



Area Planning Subcommittee South  15 May 2013 

3 

The Sub-Committee noted that schedules of planning applications determined by the 
Director of Planning and Economic Development under delegated authority since the 
last meeting had been circulated and could be inspected at the Civic Offices. 
 

 
 
 

CHAIRMAN 
 

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 14



Report Item No: 1 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/0458/13 

 
SITE ADDRESS: EFDC Parks Nursery  

Pyrles Lane  
Loughton  
Essex  
IG10 2NL 
 

PARISH: Loughton 
 

WARD: Loughton Fairmead 
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Outline application for the demolition of tree/plant nursery and 
erection of up to 36 dwellings (flats and houses, 15 
affordable), landscaping, parking and associated 
infrastructure. (Revised application) 
 

DECISION: Refused Permission  
 

 
Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: 
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AniteIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=546790 
 
REASONS FOR REFUSAL 
 

1 The vehicular access serving the site is of inadequate width and will provide a poor 
access to serve a development of this nature and density, resulting in conflict 
between vehicular and pedestrian movement, and conflict between vehicles entering 
and exiting the site.  This will be to the detriment of highway safety, contrary to 
Policy ST4 of the Adopted Local Plan and Alterations and the National Planning 
Policy Framework. 
 

2 The proposal represents an overdevelopment of this site due to an inadequate level 
of car parking to serve the number of dwellings proposed, which would result in 
increased parking in neighbouring roads to the detriment of highway safety, contrary 
to Police ST4 and ST6 of the Adopted Local Plan and Alterations and the National 
Planning Policy Framework. 
 

 
POSITIVE AND PROACTIVE STATEMENT 
 
The Committee discussed a possible Way Forward 

- Widen the access road to allow continuous two-way vehicular movements into and out of the 
site. 

- Reduce the number of proposed dwellings to meet the parking standards per dwelling as set 
out in the ECC Parking Standards Design and Good Practise guidance adopted by Epping 
Forest DC. 

 

Minute Item 86

5Page 15



Report Item No: 2 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/2221/12 

 
SITE ADDRESS: 
 
 
  

23 Grange Crescent 
Chigwell 
Essex 
IG7 5JB 
 

PARISH: Chigwell 
 

WARD: Grange Hill 
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Rear canopy. 
 

DECISION: Granted Permission (with conditions) 
 

 
Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: 
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AniteIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=543421 
 
CONDITIONS  
 

1 Within 6 months of this approval, the canopy works shall be completed and the void 
area above the flank boundary wall shown on drawing no. 201032/4F, that faces 
towards 25 Grange Crescent, shall be infilled with non-openable frosted glazing and 
shall be retained thereafter. 
 

2 No further works shall take place, including no infilling of the area under the canopy 
on the rear elevation to create an enclosed extension. 
 

 

6 Page 16



Report Item No: 3 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/2409/12 

 
SITE ADDRESS: 58 York Hill  

Loughton  
Essex  
IG10 1JA 
 

PARISH: Loughton 
 

WARD: Loughton St Johns 
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Formation of 3.7m wide vehicular access on to York Hill and 
removal of section of damaged hedge. 
 

DECISION: Withdrawn 
 

 
Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: 
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AniteIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=544200 
 
 
The application was withdrawn as a planning application prior to the Committee meeting. 
 

7Page 17



Report Item No: 4 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/0140/13 

 
SITE ADDRESS: 3 Church Hill  

Loughton  
Essex 
IG10 1QP 
 

PARISH: Loughton 
 

WARD: Loughton St Marys 
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Erection of front extension to existing teaching space in 
former garage to align with existing raised timber deck area. 
 

DECISION: Granted Permission (With Conditions) 
 

 
Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: 
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AniteIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=545171 
 
CONDITIONS  
 

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice. 
 

2 Materials to be used for the external finishes of the proposed extension, shall match 
those of the existing classroom outbuilding, unless otherwise agreed in writing by 
the Local Planning Authority. 
 

3 The extension hereby approved shall only be used for pre school nursery purposes 
within the hours of 7.30 am to 6.30 pm Mondays to Fridays.. 
 

 
 

8 Page 18



Report Item No: 5 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/0259/13 

 
SITE ADDRESS: Avalon Mews 

North End 
Buckhurst Hill 
Essex 
IG9 5RA 
 

PARISH: Buckhurst Hill 
 

WARD: Buckhurst Hill West 
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Removal of existing conservatory and erection of two storey 
extension to front and rear, first floor extension over existing 
extension, alteration to bay projection and replace existing 
tiles. 
 

DECISION: Refused Permission  
 

 
Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: 
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AniteIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=545618 
 
REASON FOR REFUSAL 
 

1 The proposed two storey extension onto the southern facing wall of the house, by 
reason of its size, position and appearance would be an overbearing addition 
relative to the adjacent property at 15a The Drive, resulting in loss of amenity to the 
occupants of that property, contrary to policy DBE9 of the Adopted Local Plan and 
Alterations and the National Planning Policy Framework. 

 
POSITIVE AND PROACTIVE STATEMENT 
 
The Committee considered that a Way Forward would be to site the extension further away from 
this boundary, on to the side of the house, so long as it does not result in undue loss of amenity to 
occupiers of the residential properties west of the application site, should a subsequent planning 
application be submitted. 

9Page 19



Report Item No: 6 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/0384/13 

 
SITE ADDRESS: 77 Manor Road  

Chigwell  
Essex  
IG7 5PH 
 

PARISH: Chigwell 
 

WARD: Grange Hill 
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Single storey rear, front and side extensions and loft 
conversion with front and rear dormer windows. 
 

DECISION: Granted Permission (With Conditions) 
 

 
Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: 
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AniteIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=546351 
 
CONDITIONS  
 
 

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice. 
 

2 Materials to be used for the external finishes of the proposed development, shall 
match those of the existing building, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. 
 

3 No development, including works of demolition or site clearance, shall take place 
until a Tree Protection Plan, Arboricultural Method Statement and site monitoring 
schedule in accordance with BS 5837:2012 (Trees in relation to design, demolition 
and construction - Recommendations) has been submitted to the Local Planning 
Authority and approved in writing. The development shall be carried out only in 
accordance with the approved documents unless the Local Planning Authority gives 
its written consent to any variation. 
  

 
 

10 Page 20



Report Item No: 7 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/0435/13 

 
SITE ADDRESS: 2 Chigwell Park  

Chigwell  
Essex  
IG7 5BE 
 

PARISH: Chigwell 
 

WARD: Chigwell Village 
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: First floor side/part two storey rear extension and part single 
storey rear extension. (Revised application) 
 

DECISION: Refused Permission  
 

 
Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: 
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AniteIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=546650 
 
REASONS FOR REFUSAL 
 
 

1 The proposed two storey extension onto the southern facing wall of the house, by 
reason of its size, position and appearance would be an overbearing addition 
relative to the adjacent property at 15a The Drive, resulting in loss of amenity to the 
occupants of that property, contrary to policy DBE9 of the Adopted Local Plan and 
Alterations and the National Planning Policy Framework. 

 
POSITIVE AND PROACTIVE STATEMENT 
 
A single storey rear extension may be considered less intrusive on this neighbour, should a 
subsequent planning application be submitted. 
 

11Page 21



Report Item No: 8 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/0450/13 

 
SITE ADDRESS: 38 Smarts Lane 

Loughton 
Essex 
IG10 4BX 
 

PARISH: Loughton 
 

WARD: Loughton Forest 
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Erection of a two storey side extension. 
 

DECISION: Granted Permission (With Conditions) 
 

 
Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: 
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AniteIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=546750 
 
CONDITIONS  
 
 

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice. 
 

2 Materials to be used for the external finishes of the proposed development, shall 
match those of the existing building, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. 
 

 
 

12 Page 22



Report Item No: 9 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/0059/13 

 
SITE ADDRESS: 63 Manor Road 

Chigwell 
Essex 
IG7 5PH 
 

PARISH: Chigwell 
 

WARD: Grange Hill 
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: TPO/EPF/10/74 
T7 - Cypress - Fell 
T28 - Plum - Fell 
 

DECISION: Split Decision: T28 Granted Permission (with conditions) 
 T7 Refused Permission 
 

 
Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: 
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AniteIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=544794 
 
T28:  CONDITIONS  
 

1 The felling authorised by this consent shall be carried out only after the Local 
Planning Authority has received, in writing, 5 working days prior notice of such 
works. 
 

 
T7:  REASON FOR REFUSAL 
 

1 Although it is recognised that T7 cypress is displaying early signs of infection this is 
not sufficient to justify the loss of its visual and other amenity.  The loss of the tree's 
existing and potential visual amenity is therefore contrary to policy LL9 of the 
Council's Adopted Local Plan and Alterations. 

 
 

13Page 23



Report Item No: 10 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/2016/12 

 
SITE ADDRESS: 128 Manor Road 

Chigwell 
Essex 
IG7 5PR 
 

PARISH: Chigwell 
 

WARD: Grange Hill 
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: TPO/EPF/23/99 
T1 - Oak - Fell 
 

DECISION: Refused Permission 
 

 
Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: 
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AniteIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=542604 
 
REASON FOR REFUSAL 
 

1 The information supplied is insufficient to demonstrate that the proposed felling and 
replacement is either necessary or justified.  A reasonable degree of reduction of the 
crown area would be consistent with policy LL8 , and without prejudice would give 
the owner reassurance that followed superstructure repairs as proposed by the 
insurers then a reoccurrence of the structural problems would be even less likely.  
The loss of the tree's existing and potential visual amenity is therefore contrary to 
policy LL9 of the Council's Adopted Local Plan and Alterations. 

 

14 Page 24



Report Item No: 11 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/0045/13 

 
SITE ADDRESS: 128 Manor Road 

Chigwell 
Essex 
IG7 5PR 
 

PARISH: Chigwell 
 

WARD: Grange Hill 
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: TPO/EPF/23/99 
T1 - Oak - Linear reduction of crown height and spread by up 
to 4.25m to achieve an overall reduction in crown area by up 
to 70% 
 

DECISION: Granted Permission (With Conditions) 
 

 
Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: 
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AniteIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=544730 
 
CONDITIONS  
 

1 The work authorised by this consent shall be carried out under the direct supervision 
of the Local Planning Authority, who shall receive in writing, 5 working days notice of 
such works. 
 

2 The crown reduction authorised by this consent shall consist of a 45% linear 
reduction of the existing crown's radial spread and height outside and above the 
original, inner pollard points, cutting outside the secondary reduction points which 
are at approx 4.25m. outside and above the inner pollard points.   
 

3 The crown thinning authorised by this consent shall consist only of the removal of 
congested, minor sublateral branches, as shall be agreed on site before 
commencement of works. It shall result in no additional overall reduction of height or 
spread of the crown. 
 

4 All work authorised by this consent shall be undertaken in a manner consistent with 
British Standard 3998 (2010) (or with any similar replacement Standard). 
 

5 The works hereby authorised shall be undertaken only within the periods June 15th 
to September 30th inclusive and December 1st to March 31st inclusive. 
 

 

15Page 25



Report Item No: 12 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/0221/13 

 
SITE ADDRESS: Roding Valley High School 

Alderton Hill 
Loughton 
Essex 
IG10 3JA 
 

PARISH: Loughton 
 

WARD: Loughton St Marys 
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: TPO/CHI/02/70 
T1 - Field Maple - Fell 
T2 - Ash - Fell 
T4 - Ash x 2 - Fell 
T5 - Field Maple - Fell 
T6 - Ash - Fell 
T7 - Ash - Fell 
T8 - Ash - Fell 
T11 - Grey Poplar - Fell 
 

DECISION: Granted Permission (With Conditions) 
 

 
Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: 
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AniteIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=545501 
 
CONDITIONS  
 

1 The felling authorised by this consent shall be carried out only after the Local 
Planning Authority has received, in writing, 5 working days prior notice of such 
works. 
 

2 A replacement tree or trees, of a number, species, size and in a position as agreed 
in writing by the Local Planning Authority, shall be planted and inspected and agreed 
to be in accordance with the details prior to implementation of the felling hereby 
agreed, unless varied with a written agreement of the Local Planning Authority. If 
within a period of five years from the date of planting any replacement tree is 
removed, uprooted or destroyed, or dies, or becomes seriously damaged and 
defective another tree of the same species and size of that originally planted shall be 
planted at the same place, unless the Local Planning Authority gives its written 
consent to any variation. 
 

 
 

16 Page 26



Report Item No: 13 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/0425/13 

 
SITE ADDRESS: 1A Loughton Way 

Buckhurst Hill 
Essex 
IG9 6AA 
 

PARISH: Buckhurst Hill 
 

WARD: Buckhurst Hill East 
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: TPO/EPF/42/88 
T1 - Poplar - Fell 
 

DECISION: Granted Permission (With Conditions) 
 

 
Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: 
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AniteIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=546591 
 
CONDITIONS  
 
 

1 A replacement tree or trees, of a number, species, size and in a position as agreed 
in writing by the Local Planning Authority, shall be planted and inspected and agreed 
to be in accordance with the details prior to implementation of the felling hereby 
agreed, unless varied with a written agreement of the Local Planning Authority. If 
within a period of five years from the date of planting any replacement tree is 
removed, uprooted or destroyed, or dies, or becomes seriously damaged and 
defective another tree of the same species and size of that originally planted shall be 
planted at the same place, unless the Local Planning Authority gives its written 
consent to any variation. 
 

2 The felling authorised by this consent shall be carried out only after the Local 
Planning Authority has received, in writing, 5 working days prior notice of such 
works. 
 

 
 

17Page 27



Report Item No: 14 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/0446/13 

 
SITE ADDRESS: 12 Stradbroke Drive  

Chigwell  
Essex  
IG7 5QX 
 

PARISH: Chigwell 
 

WARD: Grange Hill 
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: TPO/EPF/01/01 
T5 - Oak - Fell 
 

DECISION: Granted Permission (With Conditions) 
 

 
Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: 
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AniteIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=546732 
 
CONDITIONS  
 

1 The felling authorised by this consent shall be carried out only after the Local 
Planning Authority has received, in writing, 5 working days prior notice of such 
works. 
 

2 A replacement tree or trees, of a number, species, size and in a position as agreed 
in writing by the Local Planning Authority, shall be planted and inspected and agreed 
to be in accordance with the details prior to implementation of the felling hereby 
agreed, unless varied with a written agreement of the Local Planning Authority. If 
within a period of five years from the date of planting any replacement tree is 
removed, uprooted or destroyed, or dies, or becomes seriously damaged and 
defective another tree of the same species and size of that originally planted shall be 
planted at the same place, unless the Local Planning Authority gives its written 
consent to any variation. 
 

 
 

18 Page 28



Report Item No: 15 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/0630/13 

 
SITE ADDRESS: Bald Faced Stag 

High Road 
Buckhurst Hill 
Essex 
IG9 5HT 
 

PARISH: Buckhurst Hill 
 

WARD: Buckhurst Hill West 
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: TPO/EPF/41/91 
T28 - Lombardy Poplar - Fell 
T41 - Horse Chestnut - Fell 
 

DECISION: Granted Permission (With Conditions) 
 

 
Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: 
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AniteIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=547490 
 
CONDITIONS  
 

1 A replacement tree or trees, of a number, species, size and in a position as agreed 
in writing by the Local Planning Authority, shall be planted and inspected and agreed 
to be in accordance with the details prior to implementation of the felling hereby 
agreed, unless varied with a written agreement of the Local Planning Authority. If 
within a period of five years from the date of planting any replacement tree is 
removed, uprooted or destroyed, or dies, or becomes seriously damaged and 
defective another tree of the same species and size of that originally planted shall be 
planted at the same place, unless the Local Planning Authority gives its written 
consent to any variation. 
 

2 The felling authorised by this consent shall be carried out only after the Local 
Planning Authority has received, in writing, 5 working days prior notice of such 
works. 
 

 

19Page 29



Report Item No: 16 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/0689/13 

 
SITE ADDRESS: Holmhurst  

Manor Road  
Loughton  
Essex  
IG10 4RP 
 

PARISH: Buckhurst Hill 
 

WARD: Buckhurst Hill West 
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: TPO/EPF/09/95 
Cypress x 9 - Fell 
 

DECISION: Granted Permission (With Conditions) 
 

 
Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: 
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AniteIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=547791 
 
CONDITIONS  
 
 

1 The felling authorised by this consent shall be carried out only after the Local 
Planning Authority has received, in writing, 5 working days prior notice of such 
works. 
 

 

20 Page 30



AREA PLANS SUB-COMMITTEE SOUTH 

12 June 2013 

INDEX OF PLANNING APPLICATIONS/ENFORCEMENT CASES 

 
 

ITEM REFERENCE SITE LOCATION OFFICER 
RECOMMENDATION 

PAGE 

1. EPF/2025/12 43 Colebrook Lane, Loughton, 
Essex IG10 2HJ 

Refuse Permission 33 

2. EPF/0233/13 44 Kenilworth Gardens, 
Loughton, Essex IG10 3AF 

Grant Permission 
(With Conditions) 

38 

3. EPF/0307/13 38 Chigwell Lane, Loughton, 
Essex IG10 3NY 

Grant Permission 
(With Conditions) 

48 

4. EPF/0555/13 7 Albany View, Buckhurst Hill, 
Essex IG9 5TW 

Grant Permission 
(With Conditions) 

53 

5. EPF/0740/13 146 High Road, Loughton, Essex 
IG10 1TB 

Grant Permission 
(With Conditions) 

57 

6. EPF/0761/13 43 Traps Hill, Loughton, Essex 
IG10 1TB 

Grant Permission 
(With Conditions) 

62 

7. EPF/0935/13 Highways Land, Oakwood Hill, 
Loughton, Essex IG10 3NB 

Prior Approval 
Required and 
Granted 

67 

 

Agenda Item 7

Page 31



Page 32

This page is intentionally left blank



 
Report Item No: 1 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/2025/12 

 
SITE ADDRESS: 43 Colebrook Lane 

Loughton 
Essex 
IG10 2HJ 
 

PARISH: Loughton 
 

WARD: Loughton Fairmead 
 

APPLICANT: Mr R Webster 
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: TPO/EPF/13/90 
T1 - Oak - Fell 
 

RECOMMENDED DECISION: Refuse Permission 
 

 
Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: 
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AniteIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=542617 
 
REASON FOR REFUSAL 
 

1 Although it is recognised that there is significant structural damage within the main 
house the evidence supplied and investigation of the issues on site does not 
demonstrate that this is a result of root related subsidence, nor that removal of the 
tree would contribute to its stabilisation and repair.  It is recognised that the tree's 
root activity may have contributed to the damage to the boundary wall and the 
conservatory, but both these structures are of unsatisfactory construction, not in 
accordance with published advice.  Their failure is seen to result from unsatisfactory 
construction.  The application provides no evidence that removal of the tree would 
contribute to their future stability or repair.  The loss of the tree's existing and 
potential visual amenity is therefore seen to be unnecessary and unjustified and as 
such to be contrary to policy LL9 of the Council's Adopted Local Plan and 
Alterations. 
 

 
 
This application is before committee since all applications to fell preserved trees are outside the 
scope of delegated powers.   
 
Description of Proposal: 
 
Oak. Fell. 
 
Description of Site: 
 
The tree stands approx 10m in height, and on the front boundary, close to the junction into the 
Fairmead development and immediately behind the pavement. The house itself is set back some 
9m from the tree.  The flank of the building is connected to its garage by a brick wall, approx 1.8m 
in height, which encloses the rear garden, and also leaves an extensive open lawn to the front, 

Page 33



The tree itself sits prominently in that area.  Although relatively young for an oak, it is an important 
feature of the local street scene.  
 
Relevant History: 
 
TPO/EPF/13/90 was a strategic order, protecting the most prominent trees on the Fairmead 
School site, before development.   
EPF/9/92: Outline consent for 112 houses APP/CON 
EPF/0410/96:  Details of 108 houses APP/CON 
The development was designed and constructed in 1997 to allow tree retention, with relevant tree 
protection and landscape conditions.  There is no specific recent history.  Consent was granted in 
1998 for a limited crown lifting, ref EPF/0114/98.   
 
Policies Applied: 
 
Epping Forest District Local Plan and Alterations, LL 09: Felling of preserved trees. 
 
Summary of Representations: 
 
LOUGHTON TOWN COUNCIL: Objects to inappropriate treatment to any significant tree and on 
that basis objects.  It would prefer the roots to be contained, rather than the tree felled.   
LOUGHTON RESIDENTS ASSOCIATION Objects:  Willing to withdraw objection should the 
council’s arboriculturist approve felling, subject to suitable replacement.  .  
 
Issues and Considerations: 
 
Introduction 
The reason given for the felling within the application as submitted in October 2012 was that the 
“tree is causing clay subsidence damage”.  Members will be aware that the costs arising from 
decisions are claimable against the LPA in relation to TPO decisions, and that in subsidence 
cases these can be considerable.  The application on submission was supported by: 

• 2 technical reports from Crawfords (Loss Adjusters), dated September 2010 & 
October 2012;  

• an Arboricultural Appraisal report from MWA Arboriculture of August 2012,  
• levels monitoring results and  
• supporting technical information on soils, foundations and drains.   

The damage was said to be to the main house, a conservatory and also to the brick garden wall.  
Although drains had been leaking it was stated that their location meant they were unlikely to be a 
relevant factor.   
 
The LPA appointed an independent structural engineer to provide advice, (P Kelsey Associates).  
An accompanied inspection was undertaken in January 2013, following which an additional 
technical report was received in April from Crawfords.  This committee report is based on that 
information set, and the advice received from P Kelsey Associates, including following the most 
recent submission.  Investigations have also referred to building control records for the original 
foundation design and the ground investigations report accompanying the building control 
application for approval of details, ref BC/1074/96.   
 
The Tree 
The assessment of the tree is that it is healthy, and of good form.  It is a valuable tree, but not fully 
mature.  Generally therefore if there were compelling evidence that the tree were causing 
structural damage, that the affected structures have been properly constructed in accordance with 
contemporary good practice and guidance and that its removal would restore stability to the 
structures involved then the policy LL9 would be satisfied, and removal, with suitable replacement, 

Page 34



would be recommended.  It is true that felling can sometimes be avoided by other technical 
solutions, such as underpinning or by constructing a root barrier, but these will generally be 
considerably more expensive and justifiable only for trees of the highest value, which this while 
important, is not.   
 
Main considerations 
The main considerations therefore are:  

• How strong is the evidence linking tree root activity to the damage? 
•  Would tree removal assist in their resolution in a cost effective manner?  And also  
• Whether the structures damaged in this case have been properly constructed, 

particularly given that the tree was present and subject to TPO prior to 
construction? 

 
Damage to the property 
The reports supporting the application conclude that there is root related subsidence to the 
property.  The latest report states “the additional site investigations have confirmed our earlier 
diagnosis that the cause of subsidence is root induced clay shrinkage.  It is now clear that the 
oak’s influence is throughout the property and, therefore, there is even more need to fell the tree 
as the dominant and effective cause…If the council refuse (the application)…then partial 
underpinning will be needed to stabilise the property.  This would escalate the current repair 
reserve of £7k to over £120k to include underpinning and alternative accommodation.” 
 
In terms of the damage evident there appears to be no evidence of externally visible damage to 
any of the main house walls, with none of the characteristic stepped cracking from doors or 
windows associated with subsidence.   However there is crack damage to internal walls and 
ceilings, and within the kitchen.  The floor of the kitchen is visibly lower than it should be, with 
associated damage to kitchen fittings and tiles etc.  The floor of the conservatory is visibly 
disrupted, with cracking at its junction with the house proper.  The boundary wall is widely cracked, 
and also out of true.   
 
Discussion 
The application as originally submitted was on the basis that the house foundations were 
substandard, only 1m deep, and this was the cause of the cracking.  Level monitoring showed a 
considerable annual movement, consistent (it is said) with tree root activity.  It is stated that the 
clay is desiccated.   
 
In relation to the main house P Kelsey Associates point out that there are serious flaws in the 
interpretation of the data, not remedied in Crawford’s latest report.  In particular they state that the 
best interpretation of the levels data suggests that it is the datum point that is moving, rather than 
the property itself, which accounts for the lack of damage to the main structure.  They suggest that 
the internal damage arises from a failure of the floor slab, not the foundations.  The foundations 
have been ascertained to be from 2.5 to 2.25m deep, which broadly accords with the approved 
details, and should be more than enough at 9m for a tree of this size.  It appears from the technical 
information that, where the floor should be suspended, it is in fact ground bearing, and hence likely 
to fail irrespective of the tree’s presence.  Although the subsoil is stated to be relatively dry they 
point out that the technical information does not bear this out and that, in areas where roots should 
be present to bear out the allegation, they have not in fact been found.   
 
In relation to the conservatory and wall P Kelsey Ass. point out that both have very shallow 
foundations, and would be likely to move irrespective of the presence of the tree.  The damage to 
the conservatory is due to differential movement between it and the house as a result of having a 
clearly insufficient foundation; while oak root activity is likely to have been at least a contributory 
factor in this damage its removal would not prevent further movement and so further damage 
would, they consider, be inevitable.   

Page 35



 
Conclusion 
 
The owner of 43 Colebrook Lane has a very understandable desire to have the defects to his 
property, now of longstanding, remedied under his insurance policy.  However it is suggested that 
the tests to allow tree removal are not satisfied.   

1. The evidence to support the application in respect of the main structure, the house, is badly 
flawed.  It does not demonstrate that the main house is suffering from subsidence.   

2. It does not seem from the evidence supplied that removal of the tree would assist with 
resolution of any of the structural issues which have been identified 

3. The failures all arise from construction defects which need to be remedied, irrespective of 
the tree’s presence.   

 
It is therefore concluded that policy LL9 of the Local Plan and Alterations is not satisfied and that 
the application should therefore be refused. 
 
Should you wish to discuss the contents of this report item please use the following 
contact details by 2pm on the day of the meeting at the latest: 
 
Planning Application Case Officer: Christopher Neilan 
Direct Line Telephone Number: 01992 564117 
 
or if no direct contact can be made please email:   contactplanning@eppingforestdc.gov.uk 
 
 
 

Page 36



 
 
123 

 
 
 

 
  

 

 
 

EFDC 

EFDC 

Epping Forest District Council 
 

Area Planning Sub-Committee South 

The material contained in this plot has been 
reproduced from an Ordnance Survey map 
with the permission of the Controller of Her 
Majesty's Stationery. (c) Crown Copyright. 
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown 
Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil 
proceedings.  
 
EFDC licence No.100018534 

Agenda Item 
Number: 

1 
Application Number: EPF/2025/12 
Site Name: 43 Colebrook Lane, Loughton 

IG10 2HJ 
Scale of Plot: 1/1250 

Page 37



Report Item No: 2 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/0233/13 

 
SITE ADDRESS: 44 Kenilworth Gardens 

Loughton 
Essex 
IG10 3AF 
 

PARISH: Loughton 
 

WARD: Loughton Roding 
 

APPLICANT: Miss Mine Remzi 
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Proposed replacement of redundant former garages with one 
single storey, 1 bed bungalow.  
 

RECOMMENDED DECISION: Grant Permission (With Conditions) 
 

 
Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: 
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AniteIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=545553 
 
CONDITIONS  
 

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice. 
 

2 The development hereby permitted will be completed strictly in accordance with the 
approved drawings nos: 1249/1, 1249/2A, 1249/3 and 1249/4 
 

3 No development shall take place until a Phase 1 Land Contamination investigation 
has been carried out. A protocol for the investigation shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority before commencement of the 
Phase 1 investigation. The completed Phase 1 report shall be submitted to and 
approved by the Local Planning Authority prior to the commencement of any 
necessary Phase 2 investigation. The report shall assess potential risks to present 
and proposed humans, property including buildings, crops, livestock, pets, woodland 
and service lines and pipes, adjoining land, groundwaters and surface waters, 
ecological systems, archaeological sites and ancient monuments and the 
investigation must be conducted in accordance with DEFRA and the Environment 
Agency's "Model Procedures for the Management of Land Contamination, CLR 11", 
or any subsequent version or additional regulatory guidance.  
[Note: This condition must be formally discharged by the Local Planning Authority 
before the submission of details pursuant to the Phase 2 site investigation condition 
that follows] 
 

4 Should the Phase 1 Land Contamination preliminary risk assessment carried out 
under the above condition identify the presence of potentially unacceptable risks, no 
development shall take place until a Phase 2 site investigation has been carried out. 
A protocol for the investigation shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority before commencement of the Phase 2 investigation. The 
completed Phase 2 investigation report, together with any necessary outline 
remediation options, shall be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning 

Page 38



Authority prior to any redevelopment or remediation works being carried out. The 
report shall assess potential risks to present and proposed humans, property 
including buildings, crops, livestock, pets, woodland and service lines and pipes, 
adjoining land, groundwaters and surface waters, ecological systems, 
archaeological sites and ancient monuments and the investigation must be 
conducted in accordance with DEFRA and the Environment Agency's "Model 
Procedures for the Management of Land Contamination, CLR 11", or any 
subsequent version or additional regulatory guidance.  
[Note: This condition must be formally discharged by the Local Planning Authority 
before the submission of details pursuant to the remediation scheme condition that 
follows] 
 

5 Should Land Contamination Remediation Works be identified as necessary under 
the above condition, no development shall take place until a detailed remediation 
scheme to bring the site to a condition suitable for the intended use has been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The 
development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved remediation 
scheme unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The 
remediation scheme must include all works to be undertaken, proposed remediation 
objectives and remediation criteria, timetable of works and site management 
procedures and any necessary long term maintenance and monitoring programme. 
The scheme must ensure that the site will not qualify as contaminated land under 
Part 2A of the Environmental Protection Act 1990 or any subsequent version, in 
relation to the intended use of the land after remediation.  
[Note: This condition must be formally discharged by the Local Planning Authority 
before the submission of details pursuant to the verification report condition that 
follows] 
 

6 Following completion of measures identified in the approved remediation scheme 
and prior to the first use or occupation of the development, a verification report that 
demonstrates the effectiveness of the remediation carried out must be produced 
together with any necessary monitoring and maintenance programme and copies of 
any waste transfer notes relating to exported and imported soils shall be submitted 
to the Local Planning Authority for approval in writing. The approved monitoring and 
maintenance programme shall be implemented.  
 

7 In the event that any evidence of potential contamination is found at any time when 
carrying out the approved development that was not previously identified in the 
approved Phase 2 report, it must be reported in writing immediately to the Local 
Planning Authority. An investigation and risk assessment must be undertaken in 
accordance with a methodology previously approved by the Local Planning 
Authority. Following completion of measures identified in the approved remediation 
scheme, a verification report must be prepared, which is subject to the approval in 
writing of the Local Planning Authority in accordance with the immediately above 
condition.   
 

8 No construction works above ground level shall take place until documentary and 
photographic details of the types and colours of the external finishes have been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The 
development shall be implemented in accordance with such approved details. 
 

9 Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning General Permitted 
Development Order 1995 as amended (or any other Order revoking, further 
amending or re-enacting that Order) no enlargement of the dwellinghouse hereby 
approved and no building within its curtilage generally permitted by virtue of Classes 

Page 39



A, B and E of Part 1, Schedule 2 to the Order shall be constructed without the prior 
written permission of the Local Planning Authority. 
 

10 Prior to commencement of development, detailed design of the proposed railing, 
fence and sliding gate shall be submitted to and agreed in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority.  The agreed railing, fence and gates shall be completed prior to 
the first use of the dwelling and thereafter retained unless otherwise agreed in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority. 

 
 
This application is before this Committee since it is for a type of development that cannot be 
determined by Officers if more than two objections material to the planning merits of the proposal 
to be approved are received (Pursuant to The Constitution, Part Three:  Planning Directorate – 
Delegation of Council function, Schedule 1, Appendix A.(f).).  It is also before this Committee since 
the recommendation is for approval contrary to an objection from a local council which is material 
to the planning merits of the proposal (Pursuant to The Constitution, Part Three:  Planning 
Directorate – Delegation of Council function, Schedule 1, Appendix A.(g)) 
 
Description of Site: 
 
The application site comprises a disused garage court of 6 garages on the western side of 
Kenilworth Gardens situated between its junctions with Avondale Drive and Southern Drive.  The 
site was originally the rear part of the rear garden of 47 Avondale Drive prior to the development of 
the garage court in the mid 1970’s. 
 
The site has a 17m frontage to Kenilworth Gardens and a width of 8m.  The site is entirely hard 
surfaced and the garages are flat roofed structures approximately 2.5m high.  They are arranged 
in two blocks of 3 garages, one at the northern and one at the southern end of the site.  They are 
separated by a turning area which gives on a gated access directly off Kenilworth Gardens. 
 
A narrow private alley some 1m wide providing access to rear gardens of properties on Avondale 
Drive and Southern Drive from Kenilworth Gardens separates the site from the rear garden 
boundary of 54 Southern Drive. 
 
The locality is characterised by short terraces of two-storey houses with rear gardens typically 25m 
in length, as at 54 Southern Drive.  The rear garden of 47 Avondale Drive is only 9m in length as a 
consequence of the development of the garage site in the 1970’s.  Opposite the site is a 
substantial garage with hipped roof, some 4m high, in the rear garden of 45 Avondale Drive.  
Otherwise, this part of Kenilworth Gardens is entirely enclosed by the side garden boundary 
fences of houses fronting Avondale Drive and Southern Drive. 
 
The development is entirely within Flood Risk Zone 2 and largely within Flood Risk Zone 3.  It is 
not within a Flood Risk Assessment Zone shown on the proposals map of the Local Plan. 
 
Description of Proposal:  
 
It is proposed to redevelop the application site to provide a one-bedroom bungalow and courtyard 
providing a parking space and small private amenity area. 
 
The bungalow would be sited at the northern end of the application site abutting the site boundary 
with the alley separating the site from 54 Southern Drive.  It would be set back 1m from the 
boundary with the footway with its rear wall adjacent to the site boundary with the rear part of the 
back garden of 49 Avondale Drive.  A distance of 15.6m would separate it from the rear elevation 
of 47 Avondale Drive. 
 

Page 40



The bungalow would have a footprint of some 6.5m by 10.3m.  It would have a hipped roof with a 
flat top.  Its eaves height would be 2.3m and its ridge height would be 4.35m.  The front elevation 
would comprise equally spaced openings; a central entrance door with canopy porch flanked by a 
pair of windows.  A 1m wide landscaped strip separating the bungalow from the footway of 
Kenilworth Gardens would be enclosed by 1m high railings. 
 
The parking and amenity area would be enclosed by a solid 1.8m high fence and automatic sliding 
gate.  The outside walls of the garages would be retained on the site boundaries with 47 and 49 
Avondale Drive.  A new section of wall would be built between the retained garage walls on the 
boundary with 49 Avondale Drive in order to create a uniform boundary treatment. 
 
Relevant History: 
 
EPF/0278/76  Erection of three garages. Approved 
EPF/1221/76  Erection of three garages. Approved 
EPF/1221/76A  Details of garages.  Approved 
 
Policies Applied: 
 
CP2  Quality of Rural and Built Environment 
CP3  New Development 
CP7  Urban Form and Quality 
H2A  Previously Developed Land 
DBE1  Design of New Buildings 
DBE2  Effect on Neighbouring Properties 
DBE8  Private Amenity Space 
DBE9  Loss of Amenity 
ST4  Road Safety 
ST6  Vehicle Parking 
U2A  Development in Flood Risk Areas 
 
NPPF 
 
Consultation Carried Out and Summary of Representations Received   
 
Number of neighbours consulted. 20 
Site notice posted: No, not required 
Responses received:  Response received from the occupants of 7 neighbouring properties 
together with a petition signed by 13 people, each of separate addresses: 
 
1 AVONDALE COURT, AVONDALE DRIVE (Cllr Stephen Murray): Objection 
 
1. The development is to the rear of properties 
2. The proposal will have an overbearing impact on the locality, homes and gardens of 
residents due to its sixe and proximity to neighbouring property. 
3. The development would set a precedent for other similar development. 
 
28 AVONDALE DRIVE: No objection.  (No further information given) 
 
47 AVONDALE DRIVE: Objection 
 
1. The proposal will not blend into the area.  It is not in accordance with the scale of a 

permitted development outbuilding. 
2. The building will encroach on three gardens and residents do not want someone living on a 

street which does not have any other houses. 

Page 41



3. The building will emit cooking smells onto adjacent properties. 
4. The roof of the building will block out light from adjacent properties. 
5. The building will cause a lack of privacy to adjoining properties. 
6. The building could hinder the sale of adjacent properties 
7. The development would be a breach of the terms of restrictive covenant on the deeds to 

the property. 
 
49 AVONDALE DRIVE: Objection 
 
Points 1-6 made by 47 Avondale Drive repeated.  Attention drawn to the objection of Cllr Stephen 
Murray. 
 
51 AVONDALE DRIVE: Objection 
 
1. The construction is larger than any outbuilding of the properties in the area and does not 

blend in with the neighbouring homes 
2. The building will invade on the privacy of the neighbouring families  
3. The proposed construction would set a dangerous precedent and could lead to the sale of 

garden portions for the development of similar properties 
4. The proposed construction will have a negative impact in the value of the adjoining 

properties and hinder future sales 
 
54 SOUTHERN DRIVE: Objection 
 
1. The bungalow would overlook our and surrounding properties causing harm to privacy. 
2. A bungalow with a pitched roof would block sunlight to our house and garden. 
3. Potential cooking smells are a concern. 
4. Existing drainage is often being repaired and cannot cope with additional development. 
5. If permission is given that will open the way for allowing bungalows in back gardens 

generally. 
 
56 SOUTHERN DRIVE: Objection 
 
1. The building would affect light into our home, especially out back room and rear garden. 
2. The development would put more pressure on an already overloaded sewage system. 
3. The site was originally part of someones garden.  If the development is approved it will be 

a precedent for other similar development in back gardens. 
4. The development is not in keeping with the character of the locality. 
5. The development could hinder sales of neighbouring properties 
 
58 SOUTHERN DRIVE: Objection 
 
1. The development would put more pressure on an already overloaded sewage system. 
2. The close proximity of the development will put off potential buyers should we ever wish to 

sell. 
 
PETITION: Proposal supported by the occupants of the following 13 properties: 
 
30 AVONDALE DRIVE 
38 AVONDALE DRIVE 
39 AVONDALE DRIVE 
40 AVONDALE DRIVE 
41 AVONDALE DRIVE 
42 AVONDALE DRIVE 
43 AVONDALE DRIVE 

Page 42



45 AVONDALE DRIVE 
25 SOUTHERN DRIVE 
31 SOUTHERN DRIVE 
33 SOUTHERN DRIVE 
41 SOUTHERN DRIVE 
66 SOUTHERN DRIVE 
 
LOUGHTON TOWN COUNCIL: Objection 
 
“The Committee OBJECTED to this application as the proposal was considered an inappropriate 
infilling and overdevelopment of the site that would allow almost no private amenity space.  The 
proposed bungalow, situated halfway down a residential rear garden, would have a detrimental 
visual impact and cause loss of amenity to neighbouring residents from loss of light, noise and 
disturbance, much more so than from the existing garages.  The proposal would also set a 
precedent.” 
 
ENVIRONMENT AGENCY: Initial objection removed following the submission of a Flood Risk 
Assessment. 
 
EFDC Land Drainage:  No objection 
 
Main Issues and Considerations: 
 
The main issues raised by this proposal are the consequences for flood risk, living conditions of 
neighbours, the character and appearance of the locality and highway safety.  This report will also 
discuss the potential for any consent to amount to a precedent.  Objections made on the basis of 
impact on the sewerage system, property values and the ability of neighbours to sell their houses 
are not planning matters and therefore will not be discussed.  In relation to consequences for the 
sewerage system, that is a matter for Thames Water.  The Building Regulations will separately 
impose requirements on any developer in relation to the disposal of sewerage.  Having regard to 
the use of the garage block for keeping motor vehicles and associated maintenance and the 
presence of infilled ground in the locality there is potential for ground contamination.  Any consent 
given for the proposed dwelling house should therefore be the subject of standard conditions that 
seek to mitigate that potential and safeguard human health. 
 
Flood Risk: 
 
The application site is situated within Flood Zones 2 and 3.  The western two garages of the 
northern garage block are outside of Flood Zone 3, but the remainder of the site is within it and 
consequently at greater hypothetical risk of flooding.   
 
Detailed consideration has been given to whether the proposal would actually increase the risk of 
flooding or be at risk of flooding. A Flood Risk Assessment (FRA) has been submitted to inform the 
assessment of the merits of the proposal.  It demonstrates the proposal would not increase the risk 
of flooding on the site or elsewhere and that it would be appropriately flood resistant. 
 
The Environment Agency accepts the findings of the FRA and raises no objection to the 
development.   
 
Living Conditions: 
 
The proposal is of a scale that its siting would not cause any excessive harm to the amenities 
enjoyed by the occupants of nos. 54 to 58 Southern Drive.  The building would be seen from those 
houses beyond the depth of their gardens and the width of a private alley separating them from the 

Page 43



site and the rear gardens of properties fronting Avondale Drive – a minimum of 26m.  That 
distance is more than adequate to mitigate any visual impact. 
 
The distance separating the proposed house from the rear elevation of 47 Avondale Drive would 
be 15.6m.  Given the height of the proposal would be 4.35m and the existing garage wall on the 
site boundary with the rear garden of 47 Avondale Drive would be retained, the proposal would not 
have an excessive adverse impact on the visual amenities of 47.  The development would largely 
be viewed from the first floor of no 47 which would overlook the site rather than the rear garden.  
The proposal would not cause any loss of light to 47 Avondale Drive or give rise to any overlooking 
of it. 
 
As indicated above, the relationship of the proposal to the rear elevation of 47 Avondale Drive is 
such that the private amenity area and lounge patio doors of the proposal would be overlooked 
from the first floor of 47.  That potential for overlooking of the proposed development is mitigated 
by the retained garage wall on the boundary, the slight elevated position of the site in relation to 
the rear garden of 47 (some 200mm) and the distance separating the southern flank of the 
proposed house from the rear elevation of 47.  The private amenity area would remain adequately 
private and any overlooking would be restricted to the top part of the patio doors of the proposed 
house. 
 
The proposed house would appear somewhat overbearing when seen from the rear garden of 49 
Avondale Drive.  The degree to which it would be likely to appear more overbearing than the 
existing garages is adequately mitigated by the hipped design of the roof and its termination in a 
crown.  That serves to both limit the height of the house and ensure that the additional height 
above that of the existing garages is set away from the site boundary in accordance with the slope 
of the roof. 
 
Concerns about the impact of cooking odours appear to be overstated and, in any event, if 
Members find it necessary the potential impact can reasonably be controlled through the 
imposition of an appropriate planning condition controlling the position of any extract outlet. 
 
The very small area of private amenity space for the proposal is mitigated by its good degree of 
privacy and the fact that the site is within 200m of playing fields and 300m of informal public open 
space/parkland.  Although an off-street parking space is shown for the development, it would be 
open to any future occupant to park on the street in order to achieve greater private amenity space 
as required since there is no parking restriction in the locality. 
 
Character and appearance: 
 
Although the proposal would amount to the reuse of previously developed land in a residential 
area for residential purposes, the proposed house would not be consistent with the character and 
appearance of the locality.  However, it would replace an existing development which is also not 
consistent with that character.  The house would be more prominent than the existing garages and 
thereby emphasise the inconsistency.  However, the existing garages are redundant and their 
appearance is harmful to the character of the locality.  There is no reasonable prospect that they 
would be refurbished and reused as garages due to their small size and they are not needed to 
deal with any parking difficulty in the locality.  Unless an acceptable alternative use for the site is 
found or an acceptable redevelopment of it takes place, it is likely the existing harm caused by the 
site will persist and may well be compounded since the site could become a security risk. 
 
An alternative use for employment purposes could be harmful to the living conditions of 
neighbours and would certainly be inconsistent with the character of the locality.  In terms of use, 
residential is most likely to be compatible with that character provided the intensity of the use is 
low.  The existing buildings could not be reused for any residential use and there does not appear 
to be any reasonable prospect of the site being cleared and returned to use as a part of the rear 

Page 44



garden of 47 Avondale Drive, the preferred use in terms of compatibility with the character of the 
locality. 
 
In the circumstances, the redevelopment of the site for the proposed dwelling is the least harmful 
outcome, provided the form of the development has an acceptable impact on the living conditions 
of neighbours, a matter discussed above, and is of an acceptable detailed design. 
 
The proposed house would be of an appropriate scale, with a good relationship to the street.  It 
would be a simple design that is appropriate to its scale and setting.  The use of solid automatic 
gates to give privacy to the private amenity/parking area is also acceptable subject to the use of 
suitable material and a suitable detailed design.  These matters, together with that of the external 
finishes of the house and details of railings enclosing a landscaped area between the house and 
footway can all be secured by condition. 
 
Overall, the proposed development is found to be acceptable in terms of its impact on the 
character and appearance of the locality. 
 
Highway Safety: 
 
Informal verbal advice from an Officer at the Highway Authority is that the access arrangements to 
the site are satisfactory and as a consequence the proposal would not be harmful to the interests 
of highway safety.  As stated above, there is no on-street parking restriction in the locality.  
Moreover, Officer knowledge of this specific locality is good and Members are therefore advised 
that there is normally considerable availability of on-street parking space on this part of Kenilworth 
Gardens.  The occupiers of the proposal and any visitors would be able to make use of the 
availability of on-street parking space if they wished to. 
 
Potential for a Precedent to be Set: 
 
Concern is raised in respect of the potential of a grant of consent to act as a precedent.  The 
weight that could be attached to such a decision would depend on the degree of similarity between 
this site and another site.  A good deal of weight could be attached in circumstances where the 
other site has very similar circumstances, e.g. disused garages with a frontage to the street within 
a residential area.  No significant weight could be attached in respect of land that is a rear garden 
of a house, even if it did have good frontage to the street.  It is therefore found the grant of consent 
would not act as any general precedent for similar proposals.  Any similar proposals subsequently 
submitted could be assessed on their own merits. 
 
Conclusion: 
 
The principle of redeveloping the site to provide a small-scale single dwelling is found to be 
acceptable.  The proposal would, on balance, be acceptable in terms of its impact on the character 
and appearance of the locality.  The proposal would give its occupants a good standard of living 
accommodation and would be acceptable in highway safety terms.  While the proposal would not 
harm the living conditions of properties on Southern Drive or those of 47 Avondale Drive, it would 
appear somewhat overbearing when seen from the rear garden of 49 Avondale Drive.  The degree 
that it would appear overbearing would not be so much greater than the existing garage block and 
would not amount to excessive harm to the living conditions of 49 Avondale Drive.  A Flood Risk 
Assessment accepted by the Environment Agency demonstrates the proposal would not increase 
the risk of flooding and that the development would be appropriately flood resistant. 
 
Overall, the proposal is found to be an appropriate reuse of previously developed land that is 
acceptable in terms of the quality of accommodation that would be provided, its impact on the 
character and appearance of the locality and its consequences for the living conditions of 
neighbours.  It is therefore recommended that conditional planning permission be granted. 

Page 45



 
 
Should you wish to discuss the contents of this report item please use the following 
contact details by 2pm on the day of the meeting at the latest: 
 
Planning Application Case Officer: Stephan Solon 
Direct Line Telephone Number: 01992 564018 
 
or if no direct contact can be made please email:   contactplanning@eppingforestdc.gov.uk 
 
 
 
 

Page 46



 
 
123 

 
 
 

 
  

 

 
 

11

19

1 0

11

15

19

1 0

15

22

1 5

1 1

1 5

1 1

12 12

123 5 12

2 5

3 5

2 5

2

20

22

2

4 5

30

20

22

6

2

1

6

2

40

1

1 1

9

32

22

9

1 1

22

2 52 5

1 51 5

42

32

42

4 5

30

40

5 9

4 7

5 9

4 7

7 17 1 42

8 1

52

15

42

8 1

52

3 9

64

52

54

3 9

64

52

54

4 3

3 7

4 3

3 7

3 1

42

3 1

30

42

30

84

74

5 1

6 1

84

74

5 1

6 1

20 20

3

11

1 4

12

58

62

64

8 9

9 9

DRAYT O N  AVE N U E

C R A NL E IGH GA R D E NS

A V O N D A L E  D R I V
E

DRAYT O N  AVE N U E

C R A NL E IGH GA R D E NS

A V O N D A L E  D R I V
E

S O U T H E R N  D R I V E

S O U T H E R N  D R I V E

E LM HUR S T  W
A Y

LBLB

EFDC 

EFDC 

Epping Forest District Council 
 

Area Planning Sub-Committee South 

The material contained in this plot has been 
reproduced from an Ordnance Survey map 
with the permission of the Controller of Her 
Majesty's Stationery. (c) Crown Copyright. 
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown 
Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil 
proceedings.  
 
EFDC licence No.100018534 

Agenda Item 
Number: 

2 
Application Number: EPF/0233/13 
Site Name: 44 Kenilworth Gardens, Loughton, 

IG10 3AF 
Scale of Plot: 1/1250 

Page 47



Report Item No: 3 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/0307/13 

 
SITE ADDRESS: 38 Chigwell Lane 

Loughton 
Essex 
IG10 3NY 
 

PARISH: Loughton 
 

WARD: Loughton Alderton 
 

APPLICANT: Mr Baljit Virk 
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Change of use and conversion of part of an existing office 
(Use Class B1/B2) to a new cafe (Use Class A3) with indoor 
seating for 22 and outside seating area for 10. Including new 
cladding to front elevation. 
 

RECOMMENDED DECISION: Grant Permission (With Conditions) 
 

 
Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: 
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AniteIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=545833 
 
CONDITIONS  
 
 

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice. 
 

2 The development hereby permitted will be completed strictly in accordance with the 
approved drawings nos: 1403_0001, 1403_0002 A, 1403_003, 1403_0110, 
1403_0200, 1403_0250 A and 1403_1000 A 
 

3 No construction works above ground level shall take place until documentary and 
photographic details of the types and colours of the external finishes have been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The 
development shall be implemented in accordance with such approved details. 
 

4 The cafe (A3) use hereby permitted shall not be open to customers / members 
outside the hours of 8am to 6pm Monday to Sunday (including Bank/Public 
Holidays).   
 

5 No access shall be formed or signage erected for the cafe hereby approved on the 
Oakwood Hill elevation of the building with the application site.   
 

 
 
This application is before this Committee since the recommendation is for approval contrary to an 
objection from a local council which is material to the planning merits of the proposal (Pursuant to 
The Constitution, Part Three:  Planning Directorate – Delegation of Council function, Schedule 1, 
Appendix A.(g)) 
 

Page 48



Description of Site: 
 
The application is part of a three storey industrial unit located within the Oakwood Hill Industrial 
site.  The application site itself fronts onto Chigwell Lane, but at present there is no access from 
Chigwell Lane into the application site as it is behind a wall and railings.  There is a wide grass 
verge and pavement to the front of the application site between the site and the road.  The site is 
designated as an employment area (part of the Oakwood Hill/Langston Road site).  The nearest 
residential properties are some 20m to the north of the site.  The site is not within the Metropolitan 
Green Belt or a Conservation Area.   
 
Description of Proposal: 
 
This application seeks planning permission for the change of use and conversion of part of an 
existing office (use class B1/B2) to create a new café (use class A3) with indoor and outdoor 
seating areas. The proposal also includes new cladding to the front (Chigwell Lane) facing 
elevation and a new pedestrian entrance fronting Chigwell Lane. The café will have an area of 
approximately 63m2. The existing building has a current footprint of over 1000m2.     
 
Relevant History: 
 
EPF/0308/13 – New fascia signage – Concurrent application  
 
Policies Applied: 
 
Epping Forest District Local Plan and Alterations 
CP2 - Protecting the Quality of the Rural and Built Environment 
CP7 – Urban Form and Quality 
DBE1, 3 - Design 
DBE 2, 9 – Amenity 
ST4 – Highway Safety 
ST6 – Vehicle Parking  
E1 – Employment Areas 
E2 – Redevelopment of existing employment premise 
E4B – Alternative uses for Employment Areas 
 
Summary of Representations: 
 
LOUGHTON TOWN COUNCIL:  The Committee OBJECTED to the loss of amenity to the 
resident’s of the Railway Cottages at nos. 30-36 Chigwell Lane.  Members were also concerned 
that if people sought to park on the grass verge outside, this would pose a highway danger to road 
users of the busy and highly congested A1168 entry road into Loughton.  Fencing would have to 
be conditioned to prevent this.  Members also considered the site unsuitable for outdoor seating 
owing to the potential pollution from the passing, but often heavily congested traffic on Chigwell 
Lane.      
 
NEIGHBOURS 
 
6 neighbours were consulted and a site notice erected: 
  
LOUGHTON RESIDENT’S ASSOCIATION – Object to application – There is no parking for 
customers; the opening hours are inappropriate for the location; adverse effect on traders in The 
Broadway and it introduces a non-industrial use into the industrial estate setting a dangerous 
precedent. Request bollards or fencing to prevent parking on the grass verges.   
 

Page 49



1,2 & 8 OAKWOOD HILL INDUSTRIAL (NEOPOST TECHNOLOGIES LTD) – Concern that café 
will bring a further requirement for parking to Oakwood Hill Industrial Estate, concern that access 
will be from Oakwood Hill with signage on Oakwood Hill.    
 
Issues and Considerations: 
 
The main issues that arise with this application are considered to be the following: 
� Principle of the change of use within the Employment Area 
� Character and Appearance 
� Highways 
� Amenity 

 
Principle of the change of use  
 
The café is a very small part of a larger building which will remain as an employment use, and in 
size is not considered much larger than an ancillary café to a business use albeit that this café will 
be opened to the Public.  The proposal will be located in an under used office and will not involve 
any loss of employment to the existing business, but will employ 5 new staff (in part time and full 
time) positions.  It is not considered that this modest change of use will have a detrimental impact 
on the employment area, particularly as it is a use that can be classed as ancillary to the 
surrounding employment uses and will generate additional employment.    
 
It is not considered that the proposal will lead to an undesirable precedent being set with regards 
to any loss of employment uses because as stated above this is a modest change in floor area 
and due to the location of the application site fronting onto Chigwell Lane, this will be difficult for 
many other units within this industrial estate to replicate. 
 
Character and Appearance 
 
The Oakwood Hill Industrial Estate has remained static in appearance for some years compared to 
Langston Road on the opposite side of the road, which has had several new, modern buildings 
fronting onto Chigwell Lane.  It is considered that this proposal is a welcome improvement to the 
Oakwood Hill Industrial Estate, with the proposed cladding particularly modernising the 
appearance of this side of Chigwell Lane and the proposed external changes are considered a 
welcome, if modern enhancement to this building and this part of the Oakwood Hill Industrial 
Estate.   
 
Highways 
 
The proposal does not include any additional parking provision, and the existing parking for the 
existing use of 38 Chigwell Lane will remain as is and not for café customer parking.  Given the 
location of the café  within an Industrial Estate, opposite another industrial estate (Langston Road) 
(both presumably the main intended market) and some 250m from Debden Tube station, the site 
is considered of a sustainable nature and one where additional car parking in this case is not 
considered a requirement.    
 
Essex County Council Highways were consulted on the application and have raised no objection 
as the proposal is not contrary to Highway policy.  Both the LRA and the Town Council have 
requested some sort of preventative measure along the grass verge adjacent to Chigwell Lane to 
avoid parking, however the Highways Officer has not raised this as an issue, particularly as stated 
above the intended market is not customers who will travel to the site by car and given the extent 
of bollards/fencing required it would not be proportionate to the size of the development, and 
would appear unreasonable to condition this.  In addition the grassed area to the front of the 
proposed café is within 250m of the Debden Underground Station and parking does not currently 

Page 50



appear to be a problem in this area from commuter parking and therefore it seems unlikely that 
this area would be used for parking.     
 
Amenity 
 
Since first submission the proposed opening times have been altered following discussion with 
Officers and the time proposed is now 8am to 6pm Monday to Sunday, rather than 8am to 
Midnight.  It is considered that these proposed opening times are far more in keeping with the 
opening and active times at the Industrial Estate and therefore will not result in an isolated, late 
night use which may be detrimental to the amenity of the neighbours to the north of the site on 
Chigwell Lane and attract additional vehicle movements.    
 
Other Matters 
 
Impact on The Broadway 
The proposal is for one café, located close to but separate from The Broadway.  The Broadway 
provides a wide mix of shops, cafes and services and is anchored by the existing Sainsbury’s 
store.  It provides a valuable community service and it is not considered that one additional café 
nearby will be so detrimental to this service to justify a refusal.   
 
Comments on Representations Received 
 
The neighbouring business at 1, 2 and 8 Oakwood Hill has raised concerns with regards to access 
to the café from Oakwood Hill, with particular concern regarding parking.  The café fronts Chigwell 
Lane and this is where the entrance will be, therefore from Oakwood Hill Industrial Estate any 
potential customer will have to use the existing pedestrian footpath.  No signage is proposed to the 
Oakwood Hill side of the property and this can be conditioned as such to mitigate against any 
parking specifically for the café on the Oakwood Hill Industrial Estate. 
 
Conclusion: 
 
In light of the above appraisal, particularly the limited impact on the employment area the proposal 
is on balance considered an acceptable form of development and approval with conditions is 
recommended.    
 
Should you wish to discuss the contents of this report item please use the following 
contact details by 2pm on the day of the meeting at the latest: 
 
Planning Application Case Officer: Marie-Claire Tovey 
Direct Line Telephone Number: 01992 564371 
 
or if no direct contact can be made please email: contactplanning@eppingforestdc.gov.uk  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 51



 
 
123 

 
 
 

 
  

 

 
 

30.5m30.5m

25.9m25.9m

C RC R

38 38

40 40

Roding

Oakwood House

House
Roding

Oakwood House

House

Gatehouse

9

4 Gatehouse

9

4

36

4 5

30

36

4 5

30

3737

9

El
Sub Sta1

9

El
Sub Sta1

26

32

26

32

22

O A K W O O D  H I L L  I N D U S T R I A L  E S T A T E

O A K W O O D  H I L L  I N D U S T R I A L  E S T A T E

L A D Y F I E L D S

L A D Y F I E L D S

SLSL

M P  1 3

SL

El Sub Sta

SL

El Sub Sta

M P  1 3

EFDC 

EFDC 

Epping Forest District Council 
 

Area Planning Sub-Committee South 

The material contained in this plot has been 
reproduced from an Ordnance Survey map 
with the permission of the Controller of Her 
Majesty's Stationery. (c) Crown Copyright. 
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown 
Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil 
proceedings.  
 
EFDC licence No.100018534 

Agenda Item 
Number: 

3 
Application Number: EPF/0307/13 
Site Name: 38 Chigwell Lane, Loughton, IG10 

3NY 
Scale of Plot: 1/1250 

Page 52



Report Item No: 4 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/0555/13 

 
SITE ADDRESS: 7 Albany View  

Buckhurst Hill  
Essex  
IG9 5TW 
 

PARISH: Buckhurst Hill 
 

WARD: Buckhurst Hill West 
 

APPLICANT: Mr & Mrs M Twaites 
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Part one and part two storey side extension with internal 
alterations (revised application) 
 

RECOMMENDED DECISION: Grant Permission (With Conditions) 
 

 
Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: 
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AniteIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=547212 
 
CONDITIONS  
 
 

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice. 
 

2 Materials to be used for the external finishes of the proposed development, shall 
match those of the existing building, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. 
 

 
 
This application is before this Committee because the recommendation for approval is contrary to 
an objection from a local Council which is material to the planning merits of the proposal - 
(pursuant to the constitution, part three: planning directorate – delegation of council function, 
schedule 1, appendix A (f) and (g).   
 
Description of Proposal: 
 
Part one and part two storey side extension with internal alterations (Revised application)     
  
Description of Site: 
 
Two storey semi detached house but where a smaller first floor is housed in a triangular and gable 
ended roof profile sometimes found on chalet style houses. Most of the other houses in this cul-de-
sac have a more typical and traditional two storey shape and profile. The property is not listed nor 
does it lie in a conservation area.  
  

Page 53



Relevant History:  
 
A similar part one and part two storey side extension, submitted under EPF/ 2246/11, was refused 
on grounds that a) it extended to the side boundary and therefore would have had a cramped 
appearance, b) that it would have been overbearing to the outlook and amenity of the neighbour at 
no.6 Albany View, and c) the provision of a second floor rear dormer window above one at first 
floor would have resulted in an unsatisfactory appearance. 
 
Policies Applied: 
 
DBE9 – Loss of amenity.           
DBE10 - Residential extensions. 
 
Summary of Representations: 
 
BUCKHURST HILL PARISH COUNCIL – Object – the proposed extension is overbearing on the 
neighbouring property. The proposed gable end is also overbearing. The extension would affect 
the symmetry of the building. 
  
NEIGHBOURS – 5 properties consulted and no replies received. 
 
Issues and Considerations: 
 
In the previously refused application the first floor of the proposed extension would have extended 
sideways to the side boundary with no.6, and the infilling of this space would have produced a 
cramped appearance in the street scene. The current proposal now provides for a 0.9m gap to this 
boundary at the front of the extension, widening to a 1.3m gap at the rear. The introduction of this 
gap provides for an improved and acceptable appearance in the street scene. In addition the 
provision of this gap reduces the effect of the extension on the amenity and outlook of the 
neighbour at no.6. The front of no.6 lies in a more recessed position than no. 7 and also lies at an 
angle to it. However, no.6 does lie on land that is 1m higher than no.7. Also the extension is now 
set in from the boundary between the two houses, and the first floor is accommodated in a sloping 
roof gable-ended profile. For these reasons, the impact on the outlook and amenity of no.7 has 
been reduced to an acceptable level. It should also be noted that there has been no objection 
letters received from neighbours on this, or the previous proposal. 
 
The rear elevation of the proposal has been amended in that a new second floor dormer window 
has been omitted from the current proposal, and the rear elevation now has an acceptable 
appearance. 
 
In addition to their concern about the overbearing impact on the neighbour at no.7, which has been 
addressed above, the Parish Council feel that the extension would affect the symmetry of the 
existing house. However, the front ground floor of the proposed side extension will be recessed 
0.45m behind the front wall of the house, and the roof over the first floor will slope steeply 
backwards away from the ground floor front. It therefore will be subordinate to the main house - 
although it is acknowledged that the extension does have a large mass of roof, which in part is 
necessary to enlarge the relatively small existing first floor accommodation which is constrained 
within sloping roofs. The proposed extension does have some effect on the symmetry of the 
house, but for the foregoing reasons it will not result in an unacceptable change in the appearance 
of the property in the street scene. 
 
Conclusions: 
 
The proposal, as revised, now accords with relevant policies and it is recommended that 
conditional planning permission be granted. 

Page 54



 
Should you wish to discuss the contents of this report item please use the following 
contact details by 2pm on the day of the meeting at the latest: 
 
Planning Application Case Officer: David Baker 
Direct Line Telephone Number: 01992 564514 
 
or if no direct contact can be made please email:   contactplanning@eppingforestdc.gov.uk  
 
 
 
 

Page 55



 
 
123 

 
 
 

 
  

 

 
 

EFDC 

EFDC 

Epping Forest District Council 
 

Area Planning Sub-Committee South 

The material contained in this plot has been 
reproduced from an Ordnance Survey map 
with the permission of the Controller of Her 
Majesty's Stationery. (c) Crown Copyright. 
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown 
Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil 
proceedings.  
 
EFDC licence No.100018534 

Agenda Item 
Number: 

4 
Application Number: EPF/0555/13 
Site Name: 7 Albany View, Buckhurst Hill  

IG9 5TW 
Scale of Plot: 1/1250 

Page 56



Report Item No: 5 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/0740/13 

 
SITE ADDRESS: 146 High Road 

Loughton 
Essex 
IG10 4BH 
 

PARISH: Loughton 
 

WARD: Loughton Forest 
 

APPLICANT: Mr Kapadia 
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Two storey rear extension to provide 3 no. self contained flats 
(Revised application) 
 

RECOMMENDED DECISION: Grant Permission (With Conditions) 
 

 
Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: 
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AniteIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=548111 
 
CONDITIONS  
 
 

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice. 
 

2 The development hereby permitted will be completed strictly in accordance with the 
approved drawings nos: 3010/01 Rev A, 3010/02 Rev A, 3010/03 Rev B, 3010/04 
Rev A, 3010/05 Rev A and 3010/06 Rev A 
 

3 No construction works above ground level shall take place until documentary and 
photographic details of the types and colours of the external finishes have been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The 
development shall be implemented in accordance with such approved details. 
 

4 Prior to first occupation of the development hereby approved, the proposed first floor 
window opening in the rear elevation shall be entirely fitted with obscured glass (as 
shown on plan 3010/05 Rev A) and have fixed frames to a height of 1.7 metres 
above the floor of the room in which the window is installed and shall be 
permanently retained in that condition. 
 

5 Prior to commencement of development details of the proposed refuse enclosure 
shall be submitted to and agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority and 
implemented in accordance with such approved details. 
 

 
This application is before this Committee since the recommendation is for approval contrary to an 
objection from a local council which is material to the planning merits of the proposal (Pursuant to 
The Constitution, Part Three:  Planning Directorate – Delegation of Council function, Schedule 1, 
Appendix A.(g)) 
 

Page 57



This application is before this Committee since it is for a type of development that cannot be 
determined by Officers if more than two objections material to the planning merits of the proposal 
to be approved are received (Pursuant to The Constitution, Part Three:  Planning Directorate – 
Delegation of Council function, Schedule 1, Appendix A.(f).) 
 
Description of Site: 
 
The application site is a roughly rectangular site with a single shop unit with single storey store to 
the rear and a one bedroom flat above.  The shop is located on the west side of Loughton High 
Road within the key frontage of the town centre.  There is an access to the rear of the site from 
Smarts Lane.  The neighbouring property (146) has relatively recently been converted/extended to 
flats in a similar way to that proposed.  The site is not within a Conservation Area or the 
Metropolitan Green Belt.   
 
Description of Proposal: 
 
This application seeks planning permission for a two storey rear extension to provide 3 no. self 
contained flats.  The proposal is for a pitched roof two storey 15.5m deep extension to the rear 
filling the width of the plot.       
 
Relevant History: 
 
EPF/2401/12 – Three storey rear extension to provide 4 no. self contained flats – Refused  
 
Policies Applied: 
 
Epping Forest District Local Plan and Alterations 
CP2 - Quality of Rural and Built Environment 
CP3 - New Development 
CP7 - Urban Form and Quality 
H2A - Previously Developed Land 
DBE1 - Design of new Buildings 
DBE2 - Effect on Neighbouring Properties 
DBE3 - Design in Urban Areas 
DBE6 - Car Parking in New Development 
DBE8 - Private Amenity Space 
DBE9 - Loss of Amenity 
ST4 - Highway Safety 
ST6 - Vehicle Parking 
 
Summary of Representations: 
 
LOUGHTON TOWN COUNCIL:  The Committee OBJECTED to this revised application as it 
provided no appreciable improvement on the previous proposal for this site.   
 
The Town Council’s previous comments to the earlier scheme were:   
The Committee considered the plans provided appeared to be misleading, and expressed concern 
for the amenities of the neighbours nearby and at No. 148 High Road.   
 
NEIGHBOURS 
14 neighbours were consulted:  
LOUGHTON RESIDENT’S ASSOCIATION – Object to application – No parking on site and would 
result in a cramped form of overdevelopment that fails to provide onsite refuse storage.   

Page 58



148 HIGH ROAD – Objections with regards to building on the party wall, issues of future 
maintenance, removal of chimney may impact on tenants, no store room or refuse area for shop 
unit 
17 SMARTS LANE – Concern with quality of plans, obscure view of Lopping Hall, reduce light to 
property, overlooking, extra noise and pollution.   
 
Issues and Considerations: 
 
The main issues that arise with this application are considered to be the following: 
� Principle of development 
� Amenity 
� Design 

 
Principle of development  
 
A flatted development at the rear of 148 High Road was granted planning permission in 2001 and 
this has been built directly next to the application site.  It is considered that the principle of flats 
within this location is acceptable.  Although the proposal offers no parking or amenity space 
provision, this is a town centre location with good access to transport, shops, services and 
recreation spaces and therefore this lack of provision is not considered a significant issue in this 
case.  
 
Essex County Council Highways have not raised an objection to the proposal as it is not 
considered that the proposal will cause any detriment to highway safety in the locality, as 
Loughton Town Centre is well secured with parking restrictions throughout the surrounding area 
and there are numerous public car parks in the vicinity.    
 
The proposal has been amended since the refused submission.  The number of flats reduced, only 
a two storey extension rather than three storey and the extension has been reduced in depth so 
that refuse storage can now be accommodated within the site.  These alterations to the proposal 
are considered an acceptable improvement to the previous scheme.  The previous reason for 
refusal relating to overdevelopment (due to the lack of refuse provision within the site) has now 
been overcome with this current scheme.    
 
Amenity 
 
The proposal has only two new windows and in the main will be served by a light well located 
centrally within the development.  Concern has been raised by a neighbour on Smarts Lane with 
regards to overlooking, however the first floor rear facing window has been marked as obscured 
glazed and this can be conditioned as such to avoid any overlooking to neighbouring properties.   
 
With regards to the concern raised by No. 17 Smarts Lane regarding loss of light, the proposal 
extends to the same depth as No. 148 High Road and is not considered to result in any significant 
loss of light to this property given the existing built form of No. 148 and the distance (7.5m) and 
angle between the proposal and the rear garden of No. 17.    
 
No. 17 has also raised concern with regards to noise and pollution.  It is not considered that the 
proposed three flats will result in such an increase in noise or pollution to significantly harm the 
amenity of this property, above that which may already exist in this town centre location.   
 
The proposal is therefore considered acceptable in terms of impact on amenity.   
 

Page 59



Design 
 
The proposal results in a development which fills the whole site, whilst leaving sufficient room for 
refuse storage and is not considered in this case to result in overdevelopment of the site. The 
proposal has been reduced in size and design since the previous submission and the three storey 
mansard roof has been omitted.  The current design mirrors that at No. 148 High Road and the 
pitched roof is considered a vast improvement to the previous design and one that is considered 
acceptable, complementing the existing property and wider streetscene.     
 
A ‘Juliet’ balcony is proposed to the front elevation and this is considered acceptable, particularly 
because of the front parapet wall, it will be barely visible from the High Road streetscene.   
 
Comments on Representations Received 
 
Concerns raised with regards to parking, refuse storage, loss of light, overlooking and increased 
noise have been discussed above.  Issues with regards to the party wall fall under separate 
legislation outside of planning control and therefore have not formed part of the above 
assessment.  With regards to the loss of view, there is no right to a view and again this falls 
outside of a planning assessment.   
 
Conclusion: 
 
In light of the above appraisal, and aside from the parking provision issue as discussed above, the 
proposal is on balance considered an acceptable form of development and approval with 
conditions is recommended.    
 
Should you wish to discuss the contents of this report item please use the following 
contact details by 2pm on the day of the meeting at the latest: 
 
Planning Application Case Officer: Marie-Claire Tovey 
Direct Line Telephone Number: 01992 564371 
 
or if no direct contact can be made please email: contactplanning@eppingforestdc.gov.uk  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 60



 
 
123 

 
 
 

 
  

 

 
 

EFDC 

EFDC 

Epping Forest District Council 
 

Area Planning Sub-Committee South 

The material contained in this plot has been 
reproduced from an Ordnance Survey map 
with the permission of the Controller of Her 
Majesty's Stationery. (c) Crown Copyright. 
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown 
Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil 
proceedings.  
 
EFDC licence No.100018534 

Agenda Item 
Number: 

5 
Application Number: EPF/740/13 
Site Name: 146 High Road, Loughton 

IG10 4BH 
Scale of Plot: 1/1250 

Page 61



Report Item No: 6 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/0761/13 

 
SITE ADDRESS: 43 Traps Hill 

Loughton 
Essex 
IG10 1TB 
 

PARISH: Loughton 
 

WARD: Loughton St Marys 
 

APPLICANT: Mr Paolo Ingrao 
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: New front security fence with piers and wrought iron automatic 
gates. 
 

RECOMMENDED DECISION: Grant Permission (With Conditions) 
 

 
Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: 
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AniteIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=548232 
 
CONDITIONS  
 
 

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice. 
 

2 No development shall take place, including site clearance or other preparatory work, 
until full details of both hard and soft landscape works (including tree planting) and 
implementation programme (linked to the development schedule) have been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. These works 
shall be carried out as approved. The hard landscaping details shall include, as 
appropriate, and in addition to details of existing features to be retained: proposed 
finished levels or contours; means of enclosure; car parking layouts; other minor 
artefacts and structures, including signs and lighting and functional services above 
and below ground. The details of soft landscape works shall include plans for 
planting or establishment by any means and full written specifications and schedules 
of plants, including species, plant sizes and proposed numbers /densities where 
appropriate. If within a period of five years from the date of the planting or 
establishment of any tree, or shrub or plant, that tree, shrub, or plant or any 
replacement is removed, uprooted or destroyed or dies or becomes seriously 
damaged or defective another tree or shrub, or plant of the same species and size 
as that originally planted shall be planted at the same place, unless the Local 
Planning Authority gives its written consent to any variation. 
 

 
 
This application is before this Committee since the recommendation is for approval contrary to an 
objection from a local council which is material to the planning merits of the proposal (Pursuant to 
The Constitution, Part Three:  Planning Directorate – Delegation of Council function, Schedule 1, 
Appendix A. (g)) 
 

Page 62



Description of Site: 
 
Traps Hill is located within the built up area of Loughton. The existing dwelling is in the form of a 
semi detached property which is situated within a long plot. There is an existing post and rail fence 
to the front, with an opening for vehicular access. The local area is characterised by large 
detached properties situated within large and open fronted plots. The boundary treatments at the 
front of these properties are generally low walls. The front of 43 Traps Hill has some existing 
vegetation.  
 
Description of Proposal: 
 
The proposed development is for a new front boundary fence, with 2.4m high brick piers and a 
new wrought iron access gate. The fencing is to be 2.1m high, green plastic coated mesh. The 
gate is to have a maximum height of 2.5m and will be made of wrought iron. Planting of vegetation 
has been proposed on both sides of the fencing. This is a revised application following two refused 
permissions, EPF/1390/12 (2.4m high brick and render wall with gates) and EPF/2122/12 (2.5m 
high timber fence) 
 
Relevant History: 
 
EPF/1390/12 - New front boundary wall with a gated entry – Refused 
EPF/2122/12 - New front boundary wall with a gated entry. (Revised application) - Refused 
Policies Applied: 
 
CP2 – Protecting the Quality of the Rural and Built Environment 
ST4 – Highway Safety 
DBE2 – Effect on Neighbouring Properties 
DBE1- Design of New Buildings 
 
Consultation carried out and Summary of Representations received: 
 
LOUGHTON TOWN COUNCIL: Object as the piers appear to have increased in size and also that 
a boundary enclosure of 2.1m is too high, the plastic chain link fencing is inappropriate in the 
street scene, but are glad to see planting of vegetation.  
 
Officers have reviewed the plans and the pillars have not increased in size from the previous 
application (EPF/2122/12) 
 
4 NEIGHBOURS CONSULTED No comments received  
 
Issues and Considerations 
 
Application reference EPF/2122/12 was refused planning permission for the following reason by a 
planning committee. Members concluded that ‘by reason of their height and design, the proposed 
gate and wall/fence would appear incongruous in the street scene to the detriment of the character 
and appearance of the locality. 
 
When assessing this application, the main matter to consider is whether the current proposal 
overcomes the objections to the refused proposal. This report will also deal with the matters of the 
impact on neighbour amenity and on highway safety. 
 

Page 63



Design 
 
The surrounding area is characterised by front boundary treatments of low walls and open 
frontages, which gives the area a rural appearance. This is an attractive feature of Traps Hill and it 
should be maintained. However there are several examples of similar gates and fences throughout 
Traps Hill, which reduces the potential impact that this proposal will have on the character and 
openness of the street scene. The proposal is for boundary treatment of a soft design as 
vegetation will be seen through the mesh style fencing, thus maintaining the character of the street 
scene. It is likely that some of the vegetation, which currently screens the existing property will be 
affected by this proposal. To mitigate this, the proposal offers planting on either side of the fencing 
which adequately deals with landscaping concerns; however it is necessary to impose a 
landscaping condition to any consent given to ensure that the character of the street scene is 
adequately maintained.  
 
There are several examples of similar gates and fences throughout Traps Hill, which reduces the 
potential impact that this proposal will have on the character and openness of the street scene.  
 
Previous reasons for refusal  
 
Although the fence, gates and pillars are still over 2m, only the gates and brick piers will be visible 
once the planting is implemented. The proposed planting will be in front of and behind the mesh 
fence. This will obscure the development and soften the appearance of the proposal such that it 
will not disrupt the rural outlook of the street scene or the character of the surrounding area. 
Furthermore, the gates are to be made from visually permeable wrought iron as opposed to the 
previously refused scheme of solid timber. This will give the development less of an enclosed 
appearance and will safeguard the openness of the street scene, which is enough to offset the 
height of the proposed gates. 
 
The applicant has made significant improvements to the previously refused schemes which sought 
a 2.4m high brick and rendered wall (EPF/1390/12) and a 2.5m high timber fence (EPF/2122/12), 
which were considered incongruous in the street scene, causing significant harm to the 
surrounding area. The height of the current proposed gates is offset by the visually permeable 
wrought iron design which officers consider overcomes the previous reasons for refusal.  
 
Amenity 
 
The proposal is not considered to result in any significant adverse impacts on neighbouring 
amenity, given that it is some distance from neighbouring properties 
 
Highway safety 
 
The proposed gates were originally 5m from the public carriageway. After negotiation, the 
applicant submitted revised drawings in which the gates were 6m back from the carriageway. This 
now complies with current highway standards and adequately deals with highway concerns.  
 
Conclusion  
 
The proposed revised scheme is considered to be acceptable subject to a hard and soft 
landscaping condition, which will ensure the character of the street scene is maintained. It is 
therefore recommended that this proposal be granted planning permission  
  
Should you wish to discuss the contents of this report item please use the following 
contact details by 2pm on the day of the meeting at the latest: 
 
 

Page 64



Planning Application Case Officer: James Rogers 
Direct Line Telephone Number: 01992 564 103 
 
or if no direct contact can be made please email:  contactplanning@eppingforestdc.gov.uk  
 
 
 
 

Page 65



 
 
123 

 
 
 

 
  

 

 
 

EFDC 

EFDC 

Epping Forest District Council 
 

Area Planning Sub-Committee South 

The material contained in this plot has been 
reproduced from an Ordnance Survey map 
with the permission of the Controller of Her 
Majesty's Stationery. (c) Crown Copyright. 
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown 
Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil 
proceedings.  
 
EFDC licence No.100018534 

Agenda Item 
Number: 

6 
Application Number: EPF/0761/13 
Site Name: 43 Traps Hill, Loughton 

IG10 1TB 
Scale of Plot: 1/1250 

Page 66



Report Item No: 7 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/0935/13 

 
SITE ADDRESS: Highways Land  

Oakwood Hill 
Loughton 
Essex 
IG10 3NB 
 

PARISH: Loughton 
 

WARD: Loughton Alderton 
 

APPLICANT: CTIL & Telefonica UK Ltd - Mr Peter McQuaid  
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Telecommunications installation comprising the replacement 
of the existing 15m high Jupiter street column with a new 15m 
high Elara streetworks column supporting 3 no. antennas, 2 
new additional ground level radio equipment cabinets and all 
associated ancillary development works. 
 

RECOMMENDED DECISION: Prior Approval Required and Granted 
 

 
Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: 
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AniteIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=549091 
 
CONDITIONS  
 
N/A 
 
This application is on this agenda because the consultation period on this particular form of 
development is still ‘open’ at the date of the deadline for reports for committee and the 
recommendation for approval may be contrary to a possible objection from the local Council, or 3 
or more possible objections from neighbours - which may be received before the date of the 
Committee - (pursuant to the constitution, part three: planning directorate – delegation of council 
function, schedule 1, appendix A (f) and (g).   
 
Please note that should such objections not be received by the date of the committee, the 
decision will be made by the Director Of Planning and Environmental Services under 
delegated powers and this item will be withdrawn from this agenda.  
 
Description of Proposal: 
 
Prior approval application for a telecommunications installation comprising the replacement of the 
existing 15m high Jupiter street column with a new 15m high Elara streetworks column supporting 
3 no. antennas, 2 new additional ground level equipment cabinets, and associated ancillary 
development works.     
  
Description of Site: 
 
A verge on the back edge of pavement located in a widened part of Oakland Hill which provides 
for a bus stop. There are blocks of flats to the south of the road with the Oakwood Hill industrial 
estate to the east. The site to the immediate rear between the road and the tube line is Council 

Page 67



owned - and it is proposed to relocate a Council nursery in Pyrles Lane to this site, along with 
Council owned MOT workshops currently located in Langston Road.  
 
Relevant History:  
 
A 15m high pole with antennae shroud, and ground level cabinet, was approved on this same site 
2 years ago under EPF/660/11.  
 
Policies Applied: 
 
DBE9 – Loss of amenity.           
U5 – Masts and aerials under 15m. 
 
Summary of Representations: 
 
LOUGHTON TOWN COUNCIL – Comments awaited. 
  
NEIGHBOURS – 19 properties consulted and replies awaited. 
 
ESSEX CC HIGHWAYS – No objections. 
 
Background: 
 
Telecommunication poles/masts up to 15m in height are a form of ‘permitted development’ but 
they cannot be erected until a prior approval application has been lodged with a local planning 
authority. The planning authority can refuse applications on grounds of siting and visual amenity 
but must do so within 56 days. 
 
This application was lodged recently on the 9th May 2013 and the 3 week consultation period 
expires on 10/6/13. Given that the 56 day period expires on the 4th July it is necessary to report 
this application to the Committee on 12th June - since the date of the next Committee available, the 
10th July, lies beyond the 56 day period. Any representations received on this application will be 
reported verbally at Committee. 
 
Issues and Considerations: 
 
This application is relatively straightforward in that it replaces an existing 15m column (erected 
some 18 months ago) with a column of the same height in the same position. The main change to 
the installation will be the provision of 2 additional ground level cabinets These will be positioned 
to the immediate west of the column, and they will not impede on the proposed access to the 
adjoining council owned site, which is to be constructed to the east of the column. 
 
As illustrated by the 2011 approval this is a relatively good location for a telecommunications 
installation in that there are trees that act as a backcloth to the column, the column is located 
some 35 m away from the nearest flats that look over the site, and the pavement here carries very 
little pedestrian footfall. The previous application did not draw any objections from Loughton Town 
Council or neighbours, although an objection was received from the Campaign to Protect Rural 
Essex. 
 
In respect of trees softening the impact of the installation it is the case that the adjoining Council 
owned site has been recently cleared of a lot of vegetation. However there are 4 mature trees that 
still lie close to the rear of the installation, and these will still provide an appropriate backcloth, 
which will be complemented by  replacement planting to be undertaken when the new nursery and 
MOT testing stations are erected. 
 

Page 68



The current column on the site is of a grey colour but its replacement would have less impact if 
painted dark green. The applicants have indicated their agreement to erecting a green painted 
column, and this will be confirmed in writing before the date of the Committee. 
 
Conclusions: 
 
The proposal replacement column, providing the new 4G system, is very much a like for like 
replacement of the existing column, but painting it green rather than grey will further reduce its 
impact. The two new additional ground level cabinets will have a minimal effect on visual amenity. 
It is therefore recommended that prior approval is granted for this telecommunications installation. 
 
Should you wish to discuss the contents of this report item please use the following 
contact details by 2pm on the day of the meeting at the latest: 
 
Planning Application Case Officer: David Baker 
Direct Line Telephone Number: 01992 564514 
 
or if no direct contact can be made please email:   contactplanning@eppingforestdc.gov.uk  
 
 
 
 

Page 69



 
 
123 

 
 
 

 
  

 

 
 

EFDC 

EFDC 

Epping Forest District Council 
 

Area Planning Sub-Committee South 

The material contained in this plot has been 
reproduced from an Ordnance Survey map 
with the permission of the Controller of Her 
Majesty's Stationery. (c) Crown Copyright. 
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown 
Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil 
proceedings.  
 
EFDC licence No.100018534 

Agenda Item 
Number: 

7 
Application Number: EPF/0935/13 
Site Name: Highways Land, Oakwood Hill 

Loughton, IG10 3NB 
Scale of Plot: 1/1250 

Page 70



Report to Area Plans Subcommittees 
East, West and South 
 
Date of meeting(s): 22 May, 5 and 12 June 
2013 
 
Subject:  Planning Protocol – Site Visits 
 
Officer contact for further information:  Simon Hill 
Committee Secretary:  S Hill Ext 4249 
 
Recommendation(s): 
 
(1) To consider prepared guidance on undertaking planning site visits which 
forms supplementary information for the Council’s Planning Protocol; 
 
(2) That the Planning Subcommittees be asked to note and follow this guidance 
in undertaking future site visits; and 
 
(3) To note that this guidance has been published on the Council’s website and 
will be sent to members, applicants and objector (if known) when a site visit is 
organised 
 
Report Detail 
 
1. At a meeting of the District Development Control Committee on 27 March 
2013 consideration was given to further guidance for both members and public 
attending site visits to avoid the perception of pre-determination and to ensure that 
there is a consistent approach during each visit. 
 
3. This guidance is attached as Appendices 1 and 2 to this report. It has been 
split into two documents, one aimed at members and the second at other interested 
parties. These documents form supplementary guidance to the Council’s Planning 
Protocol. The guidance brings together information from the protocol. 
 
4. It was agreed that an item be placed on each planning committee to reiterate 
the process for future visits. It will also be sent to members, applicants and objectors 
(if known) when a site visit is organised. 
 
5. It was agreed by the Assistant Director of Planning and Economic 
Development that officers would also meet to ensure a consistent approach by 
officers. The subcommittee are asked to note the guidance and officers will attend 
the meeting to answer specific questions on the quidance. 

Agenda Item 8

Page 71



Page 72

This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

 
 

  
 
Guidance for Members at Site Visits 
 
 
 
 
Formal site visits may be requested by any Planning Committee. These can be 
requested either before a planning meeting or resolved at the meeting concerned. 
However, these consume resources and delay determination of an application. It is 
good practice to consider site visits only where there is a substantial benefit to the 
decision-making process, e.g. when the impact of the proposed development is 
difficult to visualise from prior inspection from a public place, or from the plans and 
the supporting material; or it is particularly contentious. 
 
It is recognised that Councillors are subject to lobbying on specific applications. In 
such cases, it is essential that care is taken to maintain the Council's and its 
members' integrity so as to protect the credibility of the planning process. 
 
Councillors are asked to bear in mind the following guidance when undertaking 
planning site visits so as to avoid the perception of pre-determination.  
 
• Site visits should be undertaken at an agreed predetermined time and 

conducted in a single group with a planning officer present at all times. 
• Members of the committee concerned are encouraged to attend site visits. 
• The site visit is managed by the Chairman, Vice-Chairman or planning officer 

present. The Chairman or Vice Chairman will remind Councillors of the 
guidance at the beginning of each visit. Members of the committee or 
subcommittee should not enter into discussions with interested parties, such 
as the applicant, the agent or neighbours during the visit. 

• Councillors/Planning Officers should not allow interested parties to use the site 
visit as an opportunity of lobbying members of the committee. It is made clear 
to other parties at the outset that the purpose is to gather information and to 
view the site only. 

• Any questions from Councillors should be limited to questions of fact and 
directed, in the first instance, to the planning officer present and not directly to 
interested parities present. 

• In the interests of fairness to all parties, members as a single group should 
consider the desirability of viewing an application site from more than one 
property when the site visit is arranged. 

• Councillors must ensure that the application is not determined at the site visit 
• Councillors should avoid acceptance of any hospitality at a site visit which 

could be misinterpreted by third parties; 

Epping Forest 
District Council 

Page 73



Page 74

This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

 
 

Planning Site Visits  
 
Guidance for Applicants, Agents and 
interested parties  
 
 
Formal site visits may be requested by any Planning Committee. These can be 
requested either before a planning meeting or resolved at the meeting concerned. 
However, these consume resources and delay determination of an application. Site 
visits will only normally considered where there is a substantial benefit to the decision-
making process, e.g. when the impact of the proposed development is difficult to 
visualise from prior inspection from a public place, or from the plans and the 
supporting material; or it is particularly contentious. 
 
It is recognised that Councillors are subject to lobbying on specific applications by 
Applicants, agents and other interested parties. Our Councillors follow guidance when 
undertaking planning site visits so as to avoid the perception of pre-determination.  
 
• Site visits will be undertaken at an agreed predetermined time and conducted in 

a single group with a planning officer present at all times.  
• You will not be allowed to use the site visit as an opportunity of lobbying 

Councillors who are members of the committee. It will be made clear to other 
parties at the outset that the purpose of the site visit is to gather information and 
to view the site only. 

• The site visit is managed by the Chairman, Vice-Chairman or planning officer 
present. Councillors will not enter into discussions with interested parties during 
the visit.  

• Councillors concerned are encouraged to attend site visits. 
• Councillors may ask questions of fact which will be directed, in the first instance, 

to the planning officer present and not directly to interested parities present. 
• In the interests of fairness to all parties, Councillors will consider the desirability 

of viewing an application site from more than one property when the site visit is 
arranged if this appropriate. 

• The planning application is not determined at the site visit. 
• Councillors will not normally accept any hospitality at a site visit as these could 

be misinterpreted by third parties. 
Further Information: 
Email: democraticservices@eppingforestdc.gov.uk 
Tel: 01992 564249 and ask for the Committee Officer for the relevant Subcommittee 
which is shown on the front sheet of the agenda. 

Epping Forest 
District Council 

Page 75



Page 76

This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

 
 

 

 Report to Area Plans Sub-Committee  
 
Date of meeting:  East – 22 May 2013 
    West – 5 June 2013 

South –12 June 2013 
 
 
Subject: Probity in Planning – Appeal Decisions, 1 October 2012 to 31 March 2013 
  
Officer contact for further information:  Nigel Richardson (01992 564110). 
Democratic Services Officer:   Mark Jenkins (01992 564607 
 
Recommendation: 
 
That the Planning Appeal Decisions be noted. 
 
Report Detail: 
 
Background 
 
1.  (Director of Planning & Economic Development) In compliance with the recommendation of 
the District Auditor, this report advises the decision-making committees of the results of all 
successful appeals (i.e. those , particularly those refused by committee contrary to officer 
recommendation.  The purpose is to inform the committee of the consequences of their 
decisions in this respect and, in cases where the refusal is found to be unsupportable on 
planning grounds, an award of costs may be made against the Council. 
 
2. In recent years the Council performance has been 18% in 2003/04, 29% in 2004/05, 22% in 
2005/06, 30% in 2006/07, 29% in 2007/08, 40.3% for 2008/09, 30.9% in 2009/10, 36.6% in 
2010/11, 28.8% in 2011/12 and 27.7% in 2012/13.   
 
3. Since 2011/12, there have been two local indicators, one of which measures all planning 
application type appeals as a result of committee reversals of officer recommendations (KPI 55) 
and the other which measures the performance of officer recommendations and delegated 
decisions (KPI 54).    
 
Performance 
 
4. Over the six-month period between October 2012 and March 2013, the Council received 43 
decisions on appeals (40 of which were planning related appeals, the other 3 were enforcement 
related).  
 
5. KPI 54 and 55 measure planning application decisions and in total, out of this 40, 15 
were allowed (37.5%). Broken down further, KPI 54 performance was 6 out of 25 allowed (24%) 
and KPI 55 performance was 9 out of 15 (60%). 

  
Planning Appeals 
 
6. Out of the 15 planning appeals that arose from decisions of the committees to refuse 

Agenda Item 9

Page 77



 
 

 
 

contrary to the recommendation put to them by officers during the 6-month period, the Council 
was not successful in sustaining the committee’s objection in the following 8 cases: 
 
Area Committee South 
 
EPF/0131/12 Outline Planning Application for two  Land to rear of  
 semi detached two storey dwelling  74-78 Walnut Way, B Hill  
 houses.  
 
EPF/0334/12 Demolish existing dwelling, pool  Willow Park Farm 
 building and detached garage and  Millers Lane, Chigwell  
 erect replacement two and a half   
 storey detached dwelling and a  
 detached single storey garage block. 
 
EPF/2371/11 Change of use of former tool shop (A1  22 Forest Road 
 retail shop) to A3 (restaurant/café) use  Loughton 
 - amended proposal now showing   
 details of refuse store and extraction  
 duct. 
 
EPF/2103/11 Variation of condition 7 ' no windows  Beagles Hut  
 other than any shown' of planning  Retreat Way, Chigwell  
 approval EPF/2003/10 (Minor material    
 amendment on EPF/0485/09  
 (detached house), numerous  
 alterations including addition of  
 basement level) 
 
EPF/1045/12 Two storey side and rear extension. 82 Princes Road, B Hill 
 
 
Area Committee East 
 
EPF/0843/12 Extensions, alterations and change of  Electron House  
 use of commercial premises to four  17A Hemnall Street,
 flats, including ancillary works.  Epping 
 (Revised application) 
 
EPF/0369/12 Demolition of existing garage and store  Treetops Care Home 
 shed and construction of four storey  Station Road, Epping 
 side extension. (Revised application)  
 
EPF/0001/12 Change of use of premises from A1  74-76 High Street, Epping
  (Retail)  use to a shared use A3 
 (Restaurant and Cafe) and A5 (Hot   
 Food Takeaway) 
 
EPF/1153/12 Replacement of New House Cottages  New House Cottages  
 with a single dwelling house and  Little Laver Rd, Moreton 
 provision of a new access. (Amended    
 application to EPF//0988/10 to include  
 an orangery to rear) 
 
 
7. Therefore, the committees are urged to continue to heed the advice that if they are 
considering setting aside the officer’s recommendation it should only be in cases where 
members are certain they are acting in the wider public interest and where the committee officer 
can give a good indication of some success at defending the decision. As this is now highlighted 

Page 78



 
 

 
 

as a separate performance target (KPI 55) it therefore potentially comes under more scrutiny. 
Whilst 60% is the wrong side of the target for KPI55, Members may be more satisfied to know 
that for the year end, the target of 50% has been achieved. 
 
8.   Out of 3 enforcement notice appeals decided, 1 was allowed and 2 were dismissed. These 
are as follows:  
 
Allowed: 
  
ENF/0402/06 The material change of use of the land to a  Holmsfield Nursery 
  private travellers/gypsy site. Meadgate Road,  
   Nazeing 
 
Dismissed  
ENF/0796/10 Erection of a boundary wall, gates and piers  Olivers 
  in excess of 1m high adjacent to a highway Daws Hill 
   Waltham Abbey 
 
ENF/0408/11 Without planning permission the change of  Mulberry House 
  agricultural land to (D2) Assembly and  Chelmsford Road 
  Leisure use facilitated by the erection of a  High Ongar 
  marquee in the position and laying of a hard   
  standing surrounded by block paving.  
 
Costs 
 
9.   During this period, there were 4 successful finalised award of costs made against the 
Council. Circular 03/2009 Costs Awarded in Appeals and Other Planning Proceedings advises 
that, irrespective of the outcome of the appeal, costs may only be awarded against a party who 
has behaved unreasonably and thereby caused the party applying for costs to incur 
unnecessary or wasted expense in the appeal process. Costs therefore are rarely awarded 
against the appellant. The costs were as follows:- 
 

- Beagles Hut, Retreat Way, Chigwell: Appeal against a minor material amendment to a 
planning permission, concerning the insertion of a small stairway window and a variation of 
another approved window, which was refused at Area Plans Committee South. This was 
always going to be a difficult appeal to defend because the impact was so minimal, despite 
the officers best efforts to make a case. The Inspector concluded that the decision had 
been unreasonable and resulted in unnecessary cost to the appellant, which was settled at 
£7,912. 

 
- Land Adjacent Horseshoes Farm, London Road, North Weald: Appeal against refusal of 

planning permission for and additional grain store. (The decision was reported in the 
previous April to September 2012 report – the cost claim was not finalised until 
afterwards). The Inspector considered the Council had been unreasonable in respect of 
the second reason for refusal regarding potential increase in traffic movements and 
resultant impact on neighbouring property from noise and disturbance. The inspector 
concluded that a restriction on the use of the grain store by condition would have 
overcome this concern. He therefore concluded a partial award of costs against the 
Council, which was settled at £4,340. 

 
- The Mulberries, Hamlet Hill, Roydon: The appeal for cost was successful against the 

Council’s withdrawal of an enforcement notice after it emerged that the notice did not 
cover all the unauthorised uses taking place on the site. The Inspector considered it was 

Page 79



 
 

 
 

not therefore expedient for the Council to have issued it in the first place and awarded 
costs which amounted to £5,389. 

 
- 74-76 High Street, Epping: Change of use from A1 shop to shared use of A3 (restaurant 

and cafes) and A5 (hot food takeaways). Both reasons for refusal in respect of firstly, the 
impact on the proliferation of Class A3 and A5 uses on the health of the town centre and 
secondly, harm to residential amenity were not in the opinion of the Planning Inspector 
substantiated in the Council’s defence and therefore judged to be unreasonable behaviour. 
The full award of costs against the Council amounted to £4,146.    

 
10. Members attention is brought to the fact that the three planning application refusals that 
resulted in costs against the Council were, in this case, committee reversal decisions.  
 
Conclusions 
 
11. Whilst performance in defending appeals has improved during the last couple of years, 
Members are reminded that in refusing planning permission there needs to be justified reasons 
that in each case must be relevant, necessary, but also sound and defendable so as to avoid 
paying costs. Whilst there is clearly pressure on Members to refuse in cases where there are 
objections from local residents, these views (and only when they are related to the planning 
issues of the case) are one of a number of the relevant issues to balance out in order to 
understand the merits of the particular development being applied for.   
 
12.  Finally, at previous request of the Planning Services Scrutiny Standing Panel, appended to 
this report are the 9 appeal decision letters that were allowed, despite Members reversing the 
planning officer’s recommendation (and therefore refusing planning permission) at planning 
committees, along with their respective refusal decision notices.   
 
13. A full list of appeal decisions over this six month period appears below. 
 
 
Appeal Decisions October 2012 to March 2013 
 
Allowed With Conditions 
 
Buckhurst Hill 
 
1 EPF/0950/12 Loft conversion including dormers to  6 Fernside  
 front, back and sides of property.   
 
2 EPF/1045/12 Two storey side and rear extension. 82 Princes Road 
 
3 EPF/0131/12 Outline Planning Application for two  Land to rear of  
 semi detached two storey dwelling  74-78 Walnut Way  
 houses.  
 
Chigwell 
 
4 EPF/2103/11 Variation of condition 7 ' no windows  Beagles Hut  
 other than any shown' of planning  Retreat Way  
 approval EPF/2003/10 (Minor material    
 amendment on EPF/0485/09  
 (detached house), numerous  
 alterations including addition of  
 basement level) 

Page 80



 
 

 
 

 
Epping 
 
5 EPF/0843/12 Extensions, alterations and change of  Electron House  
 use of commercial premises to four  17A Hemnall Street 
 flats, including ancillary works.   
 (Revised application) 
 
6 EPF/0369/12 Demolition of existing garage and store  Treetops Care Home 
 shed and construction of four storey  Station Road 
 side extension. (Revised application)  
 
7 EPF/0001/12 Change of use of premises from A1  74 - 76 High Street 
 (Retail)  use to a shared use A3   
 (Restaurant and Cafe) and A5 (Hot   
 Food Takeaway) 
 
Loughton 
 
8 EPF/1431/12 Loft conversion, including change of  61 Tycehurst Hill  
 hipped roof to hipped gable and rear    
 dormer.   
 
9 EPF/0746/12 Two storey side extension, demolition  50 York Hill 
 and replacement of garage into   
 habitable room. (Revised application)  
 
10 EPF/2371/11 Change of use of former tool shop (A1  22 Forest Road 
 retail shop) to A3 (restaurant/café) use   
 - amended proposal now showing   
 details of refuse store and extraction  
 duct. 
 
Moreton, Bobbingworth and the Lavers 
 
11 EPF/1153/12 Replacement of New House Cottages  New House Cottages  
 with a single dwelling house and  Little Laver Road  
 provision of a new access. (Amended    
 application to EPF//0988/10 to include  
 an orangery to rear) 
 
Waltham Abbey 
 
12 EPF/1007/12 Change of use of land for the stationing  Horizon Oaks  
 of a mobile home (log cabin) for  Church Road  
 residential use in connection with    
 existing stable use. 
 
 Allowed Without Conditions 
 
Buckhurst Hill 
 
13 EPF/1512/12 Proposed two storey side and rear  82 Princes Road 
 extension.  
 
Chigwell 

Page 81



 
 

 
 

 
14 EPF/0334/12 Demolish existing dwelling, pool  Willow Park Farm 
 building and detached garage and  Millers Lane  
 erect replacement two and a half   
 storey detached dwelling and a  
 detached single storey garage block. 
 
Theydon Bois 
 
15 EPF/1435/12 Erection of a garage. Beechwood 
 Forest Side 
 
Dismissed 
 
Buckhurst Hill 
 
16 EPF/1254/12 Loft conversion with front dormer  10 Russell Road 
 window, together with permitted   
 development rear dormer windows.  
 
Chigwell 
 
17 EPF/0392/12 Continuation of use of buildings A, B,  Willow Park Farm  
 C, E, F & G and land within the  Millers Lane  
 application site for the purposes of   
 storage with ancillary office (Use Class  
 B8). 
 
18 EPF/1120/12 Erection of single storey rear extension  36 Stradbroke Drive  
 with swimming pool. (To house under    
 construction)   
 
Epping 
 
19 EPF/1679/12 Single storey side and rear extensions,  51 Bower Hill 
 roof alterations including raising the   
 ridge level to allow for first floor   
 accommodation with front and rear  
 dormer windows. 
 
Loughton 
 
20 EPF/0485/12 Erection of two bedroom one and a half  Land to rear of  
 storey detached dwelling with one off  92 and 94 Roding Road 
 street car parking space. (Revised   
 Application) 
 
21 EPF/1737/12 Addition of electric front gate across  17 Station Road 
 existing parking space, in connection   
 with alterations to front area to create   
 two more parking spaces. 
 
22 EPF/0919/12 Demolition of existing single storey rear  91 York Hill 
 extension and erection of two storey   
 rear extension. (Previously approved in   
 1998) 
 
Nazeing 
 
23 EPF/2160/11 Variation of condition 3 on planning  Holmsfield Nursery  

Page 82



 
 

 
 

 permission EPF/0849/10 to allow for  Meadgate Road 
 hard standing to be installed on area of   
 land to overcome land contamination  
 issues. (Retention of use of site for  
 eight private gypsy plots to replace  
 previous temporary consent.) 
 
24 EPF/0083/12 Demolition of existing glass houses  Burleigh Nursery 
 and vehicle workshops and erection of  Hoe Lane 
 a replacement building to provide   
 modern vehicle workshops and storage  
 units. 
 
25 EPF/0304/12 Certificate of lawful development for  Dene 
 proposed side and rear extensions and  Nursery Road 
 alterations.  
 
26 EPF/0186/12 Demolition of the existing bungalow  26 Old Nazeing Road  
 and construction of a new dwelling with    
 associated works.  
 
North Weald Bassett 
 
27 EPF/2547/11 Extension to existing grain storage  Land adj Horseshoe Farm  
 facilities. London Road 
  
28 EPF/0729/12 Replacement of existing garage and  158 High Road 
 replacement with a new two-storey    
 residential two bed annex.  
 
29 EPF/0999/12 Part ground floor and two storey rear  Willow Cottage 
 extension and conservatory to rear. Hastingwood Road 
 
Roydon 
 
30 EPF/0678/12 Subdivision of existing property into two. Derwent Cottage 
  Epping Road 
  
31 EPF/2167/12 Loft conversion and associated works. 17 Barn Hill  
 
Sheering 
 
32 EPF/2536/11 Retrospective Grade II listed building  Durrington House  
 consent for alterations to lean-to on the  Sheering Lower Road  
 western side of the coach house    
 courtyard, to form a new lean-to  
 structure. 
 
Theydon Mount 
 
33 EPF/2185/11 Change of use of land and the erection  Land Bordered by  
 of stables on a concrete slab base. Mount End/ Mount Road 
 
Waltham Abbey 
 
34 EPF/2416/11 Development of solar park together  Netherhouse Farm 
 with inverter building and security  Sewardstone Road 
 fencing. (Resubmitted application)  
 

Page 83



 
 

 
 

35 EPF/1882/12 Extensions and alterations to provide  152 Crooked Mile  
 granny annexe and family    
 accommodation in the roof space.    
 Raising the existing wall plate 1050mm  
 above first floor level. 
  
36 EPF/1796/12 First floor side and two storey/single  75 Honey Lane  
 storey rear extensions   
  
37 EPF/0912/12 Rear first floor extension. (Revised  Oakdale 
 application) 3 Woodgreen Road 
  
38 EPF/2447/11 Outline application for the erection of a  Land Rear of  
 new block containing two retail units at  54 Sun Street 
 ground floor with four flats at first and   
 second floor, to the rear of no 54 Sun  
 Street. 
 
39 EPF/1364/12 Formation of 3 building plots in garden  214 Upshire Road 
 of existing house and erection of 3 no.   
 three bedroom houses.  
 
40 EPF/0246/12 Conversion and extension of redundant  11 Sun Street  
 pub into a mixed use development    
 comprising A1 retail at ground floor and   
 4 residential units above. 
 
Enforcement Appeals Allowed: With Conditions  
1 ENF/0402/06 The material change of use of the land to a  Holmsfield Nursery 
  private travellers/gypsy site. Meadgate Road,  
   Nazeing 
 
Enforcement Appeals Dismissed  
2 ENF/0796/10 Erection of a boundary wall, gates and piers  Olivers 
  in excess of 1m high adjacent to a highway Daws Hill 
   Waltham Abbey 
 
Enforcement Appeal: Dismissed, but Varied  
3 ENF/0408/11 Without planning permission the change of  Mulberry House 
  agricultural land to (D2) Assembly and  Chelmsford Road 
  Leisure use facilitated by the erection of a  High Ongar 
  marquee in the position and laying of a hard  Ongar 
  standing surrounded by block paving. Essex 

Page 84



Page 85



Page 86



Page 87



Page 88

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 89



Page 90



Page 91



Page 92



Page 93



Page 94



Page 95



Page 96



Page 97



Page 98



Page 99



Page 100



Page 101



Page 102



Page 103



Page 104



Page 105



Page 106



Page 107



Page 108

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 109



Page 110



Page 111



Page 112

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 113



Page 114



Page 115



Page 116

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 117



Page 118



Page 119



Page 120



Page 121



Page 122



Page 123



Page 124



Page 125



Page 126

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Advice to Public and Speakers at Council Planning Subcommittees
	Plans South Map
	Area Planning Subcommittee South - members photo sheet 13-14

	3 Minutes
	7 Development Control
	South 12 Jun 2013

	8 Planning Protocol - Site Visits
	Guidance for Members at Site Visits vfinal
	Guidance for Agents etc at Site Visits vfinal

	9 Probity in Planning - Appeal Decisions, October 2012 to March 2013
	17aHemnall
	22ForestRd
	74-76HighStreet
	74-78walnut
	82princesrd
	beagleshut
	newhousecottages
	treetopsStationrd
	WillowPark


